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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 88th Annual Report of your Company
along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March,
2023. This report read with the Management Discussion and Analysis include details of the
macro-economic scenario, Company's performance and it's approach to risk management.

The Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 is also available on the website of the
Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarised results of your Company are given in the table below:- (Rs.in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Profit before Depreciation & Provisions 788.17 1089.25
Less : Depreciation 0.17 0.44
Profit before Taxation 788.00 1088.81
Less : Provision for Current Tax 229.16 265.24
Provision for Deferred Tax 31.53 29.09
Profit after Tax 527.31 794.48
Add: Transfer from OCI: sale of shares 0 156.80
Add: Other Comprehensive Income(net of tax) 2.12 0
Less: Transfer from equity instrument through OCI on 4.42 0
realisation

Add : Balance of Retained Earnings from Previous year 11,190.63 10,398.25
11,715.64 11,349.53

APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Reserve Fund (as per RBI Guidelines) 105.46 158.90
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 11,610.18 11,190.63
11,715.64 11,349.53

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Total income during the year under review amounted to X1,015.53 Lac as against X1,228.24
Lacin the preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to 788.00 Lac as against X1,088.81 Lac
in the preceding year. Profit after tax stood at X527.31 Lac as against X794.48 Lac in the
previousyear.

The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the
Reserve Bank of India.
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No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date
of this report, which affect the financial position of the Company, except as mentioned herein
below under the para “Amalgamation”.

DIVIDEND

RBI vide its circular dated 24 June 2021 has laid down framework for declaration of dividend
by NBFCs. Accordingly, the Board of Directors after taking into account various aspects and in
compliance with the said circular, has recommended for consideration of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM), payment of dividend of Rs. 0.40 per equity share
(8%) of face value of Rs. 5/-. The total dividend for FY 2022-23 would amount to Rs. 9.83 lac.

The dividend recommended is in accordance with the principles and criteria set out in the
Company's dividend distribution policy. Total dividend proposed for the year does not exceed
the ceilings specified in said circular/RBI Master Directions.

The dividend, if declared, at the ensuing AGM will be taxable in the hands of the members of
the Company pursuant to Income Tax Act, 1961. For further details on taxability, please refer
Notice of AGM.

In terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has laid down its
Dividend Distribution Policy. The Policy is hosted on the Company's website and can be
accessed at http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211227_NBI_Dividend_Distribution_
Policy.pdf.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at X10 crore divided into 2 crore equity
shares of X5/- each. The paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at X122.84 Lac as
at 31st March, 2023. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any new
shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND
Pursuant to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, non-banking financial
companies (NBFCs) are required to transfer a sum not less than 20% of their net profit every

year to reserve fund before declaration of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board proposes to
transferX105.46 Lacto Reserve Fund and the balanceis retained in the Retained Earnings.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

\
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AMALGAMATION

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on September 21, 2022, approved
a Scheme of Amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with N. B. I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“Transferee Company” or
“Company”) with appointed date being 1st April, 2022. The Company has received
Observation Letters from The National Stock Exchange of India Limited and The Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is in the process of making an application to the
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for seeking its approval for calling the meetings of the
share-holders and creditors of the two companies and the ultimate merger in due course.
Pending the approval of the Scheme, financial statements have been prepared without
considering the effect thereof.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the publicduring the year.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter I1IB
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), is exempt from complying with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loans and guarantees.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any associate.
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Members are advised to note that, dividends if not encashed for a period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”). Further, all the shares in respect of
which dividend has remained unclaimed for 7 consecutive years or more from the date of
transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. In view of this,
Members are requested to claim their unpaid dividends from the Company, within the
stipulated timeline. However, no such amount of unpaid / unclaimed dividend and shares
were transferable by the Company during the year, being not applicable to it presently.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an

arm's length basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. None of the transactions
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required members' prior approval under the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations except
remuneration paid to KMP which has duly been approved by the members, wherever
required. There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly material contract /
arrangement / transactions with related parties, attracting the requirement of disclosure in
this report as per provisions of Section 188 of the Act except for remuneration to the key
managerial personnel and sitting fees paid to directors in the ordinary course of business. The
details of the transactions with Related Parties as per Ind AS 24 are provided in the
accompanying financial statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under
section 134(3)(h) of the Act except as aforesaid.

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on
dealings with related parties. The policy is available on the website of the Company. Related
Party Disclosures as required under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is annexed to this
report.

INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROL

The Company has in place adequate financial controls commensurate with its size, scale,
nature of business and operations with reference to its financial statements. The Company
has appointed internal auditors who review the internal financial control system. These have
been designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable
financial information, ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness
in maintaining accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors has adopted a risk management policy for the Company which
provides for identification, assessment, control and governance of risks which, in the opinion
of the Board, may pose significant loss or threat to the Company. The Policy is formulated in
compliance with Regulation 21 and Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. The policy is available on the website of the Company and also forms a part of the
Corporate Governance Report.

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational
Risks and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The details of the Committee are given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

\
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Directors

The Company has eight directors on its Board. Detailed composition about the Board is
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. All the Directors have submitted relevant
declarations/ disclosures as required under the Act and the Listing Regulations.

Shri Sundeep Bhutoria, an Independent Director, was appointed by the Board on 21st
September, 2022 for a consecutive term of five years and the resolution seeking Members'
approval was duly passed in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 20th December,
2022.

Re-appointment of Directors

ShriJagdish Prasad Mundra (DIN: 00630475), a Director of the Company retires by rotation at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read
with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules 2014 and the
Articles of Association of your Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
as Director. In accordance with Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing regulations, no person can be
appointed or continue as a non-executive director who has attained the age of seventy five
years unless a Special Resolution has been passed to that effect. The Company has already
taken consent of the members by way of special resolution at the AGM held on 23rd
September, 2021 for continuation of his directorship.

Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya has been re-appointed as a Non-executive Independent
Director by the Board on 9th June, 2023 for a second term of 5 consecutive years, with effect
from 29th June, 2023 subject to Members' approval at the ensuing AGM. Shri Bhattacharya
has given a declaration that he meets the criteria of Independence and is Independent of the
Management. Resolution seeking approval of the members at the AGM has been included in
the Notice thereof.

The Board recommends their re-appointment / appointment and accordingly resolutions
seeking approval of the members for their re-appointments / appointments have been
included in the Notice of forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company along with
their brief profile. As required by Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and provisions of
the Secretarial Standards, brief resume and other details of the above-mentioned Director(s)
seeking appointment/re-appointment, is attached to the Notice of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for appointment / reappointment at the ensuing Annual
General meeting is disqualified from being appointed /reappointed as Director under the
provisions of the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other order, directions of MCA, SEBI

\
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orany other statutory authority.

Shri Ashok Bhandari, Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya, Shri Debashis Ray, Shri Sundeep
Bhutoria and Smt. Priyanka Mohta continue to be Independent Directors of the Company
appointed for a period of five years from their respective dates of appointment.

The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in their
respective fields. The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors
confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that
they have complied with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company's Code of Conduct.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under
the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management, and are persons of high integrity, expertise and
experience. Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Board is also of
the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
experience and expertise in the fields of strategy, business management, accounts & finance
and taxation and they hold highest standards of integrity.

The Company has taken requisite steps towards the inclusion of the names of all the
Independent Directors in the data bank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs ('lICA'). Accordingly, all the Independent Directors of the Company have registered
themselves with IICA for the said purpose. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with the
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
Independent Directors of the Company have completed / undertaken to complete online
proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the said Institute.

ShriS.P. Kumaris the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Shri Ashish Kedia is the Company Secretary of the Company.

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senior Management including the employees have
complied with their respective obligations as mentioned under Regulations 25 and 26 of the

Listing Regulations.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS
COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

Pursuant tothe provisions of the Actand SEBI Listing Regulationsthe Board has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, the performance of the Directors individually
aswell asthe evaluation of the working of its Committees.

\
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For evaluating the Board as a whole, views were sought from the Directors on various aspects
of the Board's functioning such as degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board Structure
and composition, establishment, delineation of responsibilities to various committees,
effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, Board culture and dynamics,
quality of relationship between the Board and the management.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from
the committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors,
the Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the
views of non-executive directors. The Independent Directors reviewed the performance of
non-independent directors and the Board as a whole, took into account the views of non-
executive directors and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the management and the Board. The Independent Directors were satisfied with the
performance of the Board as a whole and timeliness of flow of information.

Some of the key criteria for performance evaluation are as follows:-

Performance evaluation of Directors:

° Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
° Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
° Guidance /support to the management outside the Board / Committee meetings.

Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:

Board structure and composition

Degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities

Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees
Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning
Board culture and dynamics

Quality of relationship between Board and Management
Efficacy of communication with external shareholders.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted declaration of independence, stating that they
meet the criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act, as amended,
and regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independent directors have also
confirmed compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the
databank ofindependent directors.
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The Board took on record the declarations and confirmations submitted by the independent
directors regarding their meeting the prescribed criteria of independence, after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same in terms of the requirements of regulation 25 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended upto date, the extract of
annual return is no longer required to be part of the Board Report. In Compliance to the
provisions of Section 92 and Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2023 will be placed on the Company's website in due
course.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors

M/s Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 302137E, who are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”) held on 27th January, 2022, to hold office from the date of passing
of resolution until the conclusion of the 89th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year
2024 subject to the Boards' review every year. In accordance with the RBI directives, the
Board has reviewed the performance of the statutory auditors and approved their
continuation as statutory auditors for the year 2023-24 as recommended by the Audit
Committee. The Members are required to fix remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the
financial year ending 31st March, 2024.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the eligibility / independence criteria
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

The audit report by M/s Chaturvedi & Co., for the FY2023 is unmodified, i.e., it does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report
Section 204 of the Act, inter-alia requires every listed company to undertake Secretarial Audit
and annex with its Board's Report a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in

practice inthe prescribed form.

In line with the requirement of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 24A of the Listing
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Regulations and other applicable provisions, if any, the Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2022-23 has been conducted by Ms. Sneha Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary (PCS).

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 is annexed to this
Report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
requiring explanation or clarification from the Board.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by
the Central Governmentis not applicable tothe Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry
out the Tax Audit for the Assessment Year 2023-24.

Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee had appointed M/s
D. K. Parmanandka & Co., Chartered Accountants, to carry out the Internal Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the reporting period, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has
reported to the audit committee/Board, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
any instance of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence
the requirement to mention the same in this reportis notapplicable.

BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per
business needs. Due to business exigencies, the Board and Committees have also been
approving several proposals by circulation from time to time.

Board Meeting

During the year, seven Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are
given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was
within the period prescribed under the Act, Secretarial Standards—1 (SS-1) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and Listing Regulations.

\
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The Company has the following eight (8) Committees, which have been established in
compliance with the relevant provisions of applicable laws, RBl directions and as per business
requirements:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Risk Management Committee

4. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

6. Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO)
7.Investment/Credit Committee

8. Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three Independent Directors namely, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya (Chairman), Shri Ashok Bhandari and Shri Debasish Ray and a Non Independent
Director ShriJagdish Prasad Mundra. The Committee met five times during the year.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprising of three
independent directors and one non- independent director namely, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya (Chairman), Shri Ashok Bhandari, Shri Debasish Ray and Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar.
The Committee met twice during the year.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has a Risk Management Committee comprising of three members, namely Shri
Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar (Director) and Shri S P Kumar. The
Committee met twice during the year.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri
Bankat Lal Gaggar (Chairman), Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya. The Committee held three meetings during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Act the Board of Directors has constituted a

CSR Committee under the Chairmanship of Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya. Shri Debasish
Ray, Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra are the other members of the

10
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Committee. The Committee met once during the reporting period.

The CSR Committee of the Board has framed a CSR Policy which is annexed hereto and forms
part of this Report. The same is also available on the website of the Company viz.
http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211109_NBI_CSR_Policy_2021.pdf

This year the Company was not required to spend any amount as the average net profits
before tax of the previous three financial years calculated as per Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013 was negative.

The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2022-23 with requisite details in the specified
format as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is
annexed hereto and forms part of this report.

More details about all the Committees of the Board, including details of the role and
responsibilities of Committees, the particulars of meetings held and attendance of the
Members at such meetings are stated in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part
of the Annual Report.

Finance and Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO)

Finance And Assets Liability Supervisory Committee (ALCO) of Directors comprises of three
members, namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Jagdish
Prasad Mundra. The Committee held three meetings during the year.

Investment/Credit Committee

Investment/Credit Committee of Directors comprises of three members, namely Shri Ashok
Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and ShriJagdish Prasad Mundra. The Committee
held three meetings during the year.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee

Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee of Directors comprises of three members,
namely Shri Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar and Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya. The Committee held three meetings during the year.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
framed a policy, inter alia, for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
directors which is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to

\
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remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is also
annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company follows the criteria for determining qualification,
positive attributes, independence of Directors as per applicable policies of the Company.

Directors are appointed /re-appointed with the approval of the Members for a term in
accordance with the provisions of law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All
Directors, other than Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, unless otherwise
specifically provided under the Articles of Association or under any statute or terms of
appointment.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any material changes and commitments in terms of Section 134(3)(l) of
the Act, affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year
of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 and the date of this reporti.e. 9th June, 2023 except
for the receipt of Observation Letters from The National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.r.t.
the amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with N. B. 1. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Company”).

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE (D&O POLICY)

The Company has in place a D&O policy which is renewed every year. It covers directors
(including independent directors) of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that quantum
and risk presently covered is adequate.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work that is free from
discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of
sexual harassment the company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of sexual
harassment as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. The Policy aims to provide
protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing
a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. However, constitution of Internal
Committee as required under the Act is not applicable to the Company since the company
has less than 10 employees. All employees are covered under this Policy. During the year
under review, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment, hence no
disclosureis applicable. This Policy is available on our website.

\
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
guidelines issued by SEBI. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy. These form part of the Notes to the
financial statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2022-23, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

i) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for FY 2022-23;

iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

V) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
thatsuchinternal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and are operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in Rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

appended to the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and other details as required under Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of

\
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Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed hereto forming part of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

Being an investment company and not involved in any industrial or manufacturing activity,
the Company's activities involve very low energy consumption and has no particulars to
report regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption. The disclosures relating
to Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not
applicable.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any foreign exchange expenditure
and foreign exchange earnings.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company's equity shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).
The Company has paid the annual listing fee to the stock exchange upto the financial year
2023-24.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Annual Report contains a separate section on the Company's corporate governance
practices. It forms an integral part of this Report, as annexed hereto, together with the
Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations.
There are no demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account as on the date of this
Report asrequiredin Part F of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and
Analysis Reportis set out hereunder and forms part of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

A separate section on Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report is annexed herewith
and forms anintegral part of this Annual Report.

\
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MANAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS PRACTICES:
Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) and Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the
mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is
affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee
Chairman. The Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company.

The Company's “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Code of Conduct)” is applicable to the
employees including directors of the Company and is available on the Company's website. All
employees including directors of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of
Conduct.

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and report trading by Insiders

In terms of SEBI (Prohibitions of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (Insider
Code) as approved by the Company's Board. Insiders (as defined in Insider Code) including
designated employees & persons and their relatives are, inter-alia, prohibited from tradingin
the shares and securities of the Company or counsel any person during any period when the
“unpublished price sensitive information” are available with them.

The Insider Code also requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and
prohibits dealing in Company's shares by the Directors and the designated employees while
in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company.

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, transfer of
securities of listed entities can be processed only in dematerialized form. Further, pursuant to
SEBI circular dated 25th January 2022, securities of the Company shall be issued in
dematerialized form only while processing service requests in relation to issue of duplicate
securities certificate, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-
division / splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios,
transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service
requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR — 4, the format of which is available
on the Company's website and on the website of the Company's Registrar and Transfer
Agents—MDPL. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after the folio
is KYC Compliant.

\
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UPDATING KYC DETAILS

SEBIvide circular dated 3rd November, 2021 has mandated the listed companies to have PAN,
KYC, bank details and Nomination of all shareholders holding shares in physical form. Folios
wherein any one of the cited details/documents are not available with us, on or after 1st
October, 2023, shall be frozen as per the aforesaid SEBI circular.

The investor service requests forms for updation of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination
viz., Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13, SH-14 are available on our website www.nbi-india.co.in
In view of the above, we urge the shareholders to submit the Investor Service Request form
along with the supporting documents at the earliest.

In respect of shareholders who hold shares in the dematerialized form and wish to update
their PAN, KYC, Bank Details and Nomination are requested to contact their respective
Depository Participants.

16



88th Annual Report 2022-23

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

POLICIES

In addition to its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by
the Company and uploaded on its website are as under:

Name of the Policy

Web link

Policy for selection and appointment
of Directors, Senior Management
including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of the directors

http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/NBIAppointment_Policy.pdf

Archival Policy for Website content

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Archival_Policy.pdf

Policy on Determination of Materiality

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Determination_of_Materiality.pdf

Familiarisation Program for
Independent Directors

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Familiarisation_Program.pdf

Insider Trading Code

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Insider_Trading_Code.pdf

Policy for
Subsidiary

Determining Material

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Material_Subsidiary.pdf

Policy on Materiality of Related Party
Transactions

http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/20220518_NBI_Policy_
on_Materiality_of RPT.pdf

Policy relating to remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Remuneration_Policy.pdf

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower
Policy

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

Prohibition of Insider Trading

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Prohibition of Insider Trading Policy.pdf

Corporate Social
Policy

Responsibility

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI CSR Policy.pdf

Prohibition of Sexual Harassment

Policy

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/
NBI Prohibition of Sexual Harassment Policy.pdf

Dividend Distribution Policy

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211227_NBI_
Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf

Risk Management Policy

http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20220518_NBI_

Risk_Management_Policy.pdf

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the support the Company continues to
receive from its Bankers and Shareholders and acknowledge the valuable contribution from

the employees of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 9"June, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board
(Ashok Bhandari)
Chairman
DIN: 00012210
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Annexure to the Director’s Report

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Details of transactions with related parties:

Nature of Name of related party Description of Amount
Transactions Relationship (Rs. Lacs)
Remuneration Mr. S.P. Kumar Key Management 23.64
Personnel
Remuneration Ashish Kedia Key Management 1531
(from 1% June, 2022) Personnel
Remuneration Sudha Jain Key Management 0.40
('I.lptO 31 May, 2022) Personnel

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata (Ashok Bhandari)
Dated: 9% June, 2023 Chairman

DIN: 00012210
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(Form MR -3)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

N.B.l.INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED,
(CIN:L65923WB1936PLC065596)

21, Strand Road, Kolkata— 700001

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and adherence to good corporate practices by N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED (hereinafter called as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report thatin my opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended 31 March 2023, complied with the applicable statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanismin place subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 according to the
provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there-under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there-under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there-under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and Externa Commercial Borrowings -Not Applicable;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable:-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sharesand
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not Applicable
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depository Participant) Regulations,2018;
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009.Not Applicable;

\
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 -

Not Applicable;
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable
j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; Not Applicable

(vi) Rules, regulations and guidelinesissued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to
Non- Banking Financial Companies, which are specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :
(i) Secretarial Standardsissued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

Ifurtherreportthat
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-

Executive Directors & Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive Director
but they have Manager, CFO and Company Secretary. The change in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws
and maintenance of financial records and books of account have not been reviewed in this
audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other
designated professionals.

Adequate noticeis given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes
of the Meeting of the Board of Directors.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Signature: Sd/-

Name :SnehaAgarwal
ACSNo. :38284

CPNo :14914

Place  :Kolkata

Date :05/05/2023

UDIN  :A038284E000258174
PEERREVIEW NO-2479/2022
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

In today’s context, the 'Corporate Social Responsibility’ (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way
fora Company to balance its Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing
the Shareholders’ value and Stakeholders expectations.

The Company aims to focus on environment preservation, spreading education, sports and
supporting needy people of the society for their overall upliftment. Though its social activities
are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its operations, which may include people /
programs which may not be so related strictly considering overall upliftment objectives. The
Company has framed its CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2013 and the same s placed on the Company's website.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises 4 members, of which two are Independent Directors. The
Committee met once during the reporting period on 27" February, 2023. The details of
members and the meeting are as under:

. . Number of meetings | Number of meetings of CSR
SI. Name of Designation / Nature . " g
No. Director of Directorship h?eflc(i:gl?ri?\ ZT;; 't;::r Commlttetehzt;eenac:ed during
1 Mr. Tapas Kumar Chairman 1 1
’ Bhattacharya (Independent Director)
: Member
2. . .
Mr. Debasish Ray (Independent Director) 1 1
Member (Non-executive
8. Mr. B L Gaggar Non-Independent Director) 1 1
Member (Non-executive
4. Mr.JPM :
rJ undra Non-Independent Director) 1 1

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the said Policy along with composition of CSR Committee
and CSR Projects are placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same
is: http://www.nbi-india.co.in/policies/20211109_NBI_CSR_Policy_2021.pdf

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report)

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount

required for set off for the financial year, if any: (Rs Lacs)
Sl Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be set- off for
No. preceding financial years (in Rs) | the financial year, if any (in Rs)

NIL

\
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. (155.18 Lacs)
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :
Rs.(3.10) Lacs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: NIL
(c) Amountrequired to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): NIL
8. (a) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount | Total Amount transferred to| Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as | under Schedule Vil as per second proviso
Financial Year per section 135(6) to section 135(5)
(inRs.)
Amount | Date of transfer Nar:(:::l the Amount Date of transfer
Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
M| @ (3) () (5) (6) M (8 (9 (10) (1)
SI. | Name | ltemfrom | Local | Locationof | Project | Amount |Amountspentin|Amounttransfer| Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | the list area | the project. | duration | allocated | the current | to Unspent CSR | Implementa-| Implementation
Project|  of (Yes/No.) forthe | financial Year | Account for tion Through
activities project (inRs.) the project as Direct Implementing
in Schedule (inRs.) per Section (Yes/No) Agency
i 135(6)
to the Act. (inRs.) SR
State | District Name Regiﬁlraliun
0.
NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
@D @ 3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. | Name Item from Local Location of the project. Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | of the the list of area spent | Implementa- | Implementation
Project. | activities | (Yes/No.) for the tion Through
in Schedule project Direct Implementing
Vil (inRs.) (Yes/No) Agency
to the Act.
State District Name Reg%%rgtion
0.
NIL
J
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-
(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — NIL
()  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — NIL
) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- Not Applicable
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sl . Amount
No. Particular (Rs. Lacs)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) | (3.10)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL
(ii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of NIL
the previous financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sl. | Preceding| Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. | Financial | transferred spent in specified under Schedule VIl as | remaining to
Year. to Unspent the per section 135(6), if any. be spent in
CSR reporting succeeding
Account Financial financial
under Year years
section | (in Rs. Lacs). (in Rs. Lacs)
135 (6) Name | Amount Date of
(in Rs. Lacs) of the (in Rs.) transfer
Fund
1. 2019-20 NIL 59.70 NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
2. 2020-21 NIL NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
3. | 2021-22 NIL NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable NIL
TOTAL 59.70
.

\
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

M @ 3) 4) () (6) ) ® (9)
Sl. | Project | Name of Financial | Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No. ID. the Year in duration | amount spent on amount spent project-

Project | which the allocated | the project | atthe end of Completed

project for the in the reporting /Ongoing.
was project reporting Financial Year.
commenced (in Rs.). Financial (in Rs.)
Year
(in Rs).
NIL
10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset

1.

so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b) Amountof CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital assetis registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5) : Not Applicable

For N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 9"June, 2023

J.P. Mundra T.K. Bhattacharya
Director Chairman of
DIN:00630475 CSR Committee

DIN: 00711665

NB: Figures in bracket indicate negative figures.

\
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited (NBI) believes that for its operation and growth to
be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs. Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social upliftment etc. NBI believes in making social
development as an integral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful
change in the lives of people. NBI considers social responsibility as a voluntary act rather than
an additional activity mandated by statute.

NBI has in line with / in conformity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy. NBI
will maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
policy and that the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.
The contents of NBI's CSR Policy are given below:-
1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy
NBI Programmes will focus on supporting needy people of the society for their overall
upliftment. Though its social activities will be focusing primarily on areas surrounding
its operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly
considering overall upliftment objectives.
2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

NBl is committed to spend 2% of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by
the Company.

4. Identification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution
The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines
formulated or laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VII to
the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Organisational Mechanism

NBI has co-promoted a Section 8 Company alongwith other Companies to undertake
activities relating to development of sports in fulfilling its CSR objectives.

6. Implementation
CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities /

initiatives and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the
company.
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7. Budget-CSR Corpus

NBI will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for
social initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or
progressive basis.

8. Performance Management
NBI will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the
performance.

9. Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company’s engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on its website and
through its Annual Reports etc.

10. Management Commitment
Our Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the
philosophy of compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and

compassion, characterised by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone.
Thisis the cornerstone of our CSR Policy.

11. Review of Policy
CSR Committee of the Board of N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited will review

the policy from time to time based on the changing needs and aspirations of the target
beneficiaries and make suitable modifications as may be necessary.

For N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

Place : Kolkata

Date: 9" June, 2023 J.P. Mundra T. K. Bhattacharya
Director Chairman of CSR
DIN -00630475 Committee

DIN-00711665
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the director

Introduction
N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd. (NBI) believes that an enlightened Board consciously

creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the
quality of governance.

NBI recognizes the importance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the
Board. NBI aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent
Directors.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the independence
of Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by NBI’s
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Policy

Qualifications and Criteria

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its
individual members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience
that are relevant forthe Company’s business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee may take into account
factors such as:

General understanding of the Company’s business dynamics and social perspective;
Educational and professional background;

Standing in the profession;

Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;

Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities effectively.

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

° Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);

\
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° Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

° Shall give his written consentin prescribed form to act as a Director;

o Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a
Committee Member, the Committee Meetings;

° Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees
and Senior Management Personnel;

° Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies

corporate, firms, or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the
first meeting of the Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a
change inthe disclosures already made;

° Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the
Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best
enables the success of the Company’s business.

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment / re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess
determination of independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the
Director.

To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified in
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

Other directorships / committee memberships

The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to
contribute to effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature
of, and the time involved in a Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of
the individual Director and making its recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director, including any alternate directorship, in more than 20
companies of which not more than 10 shall be Public Limited Companies.

ADirector shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not
more than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director/Managing
Directorin any Listed entity.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairperson of more
than 5 committees across all listed entities in which he /she is a director.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders’ Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall
be included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign
Companies, high value debt listed entities and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

\
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Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
Introduction
N.B.l. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd. (NBI) recognizes the importance of aligning the business
objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore
formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees keeping in view the following objectives:
* Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
« Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the
performance benchmarks.
» Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals. However, there is no incentive pay at present.

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees of the Company.

Terms and References

Inthis Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a
Whole-time Director;
ii) the Company Secretary;
iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by NBI's
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of
the Company within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company.
Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board
and the Committees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be
entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending
Board and Committee meetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their duties as
Directors.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall also
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees of the Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according
to their qualifications, and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall
be based on various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following:

a) Basic Pay

b) Perquisites and Allowances

c) Retiral Benefits
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Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014

i)

i)

iv)

vi)

Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the
employees of the Company for the financial year :

Not Applicable, as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board /
Committee meetings.

Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year
5.01%

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
9.46%

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
5 (Five)

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2022-
23 was 12.03%. Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was
5.01%.

Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

\
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
I. Details of the listed entity
1. Corporate Identity Number [CIN) of the ListedEntity L65923WB1936PLC065596
2. Name of the Listed Entity N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LTD.
3.  Yearofincorporation 1936
4,  Registered office address 21 STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA 700001
5.  Corporate address 21 STRAND ROAD KOLKATA 700001
6. E-mail nbifinance@ymail.com
7. Telephone 033: 2230 9601-03
8.  Website : www.nbi-india.co.in
9.  Financial yearfor whichreportingis beingdone FY2022-23
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where sharesare listed National Stock Exchangeof India Ltd.
11. Paid-up Capital Rs. 1,22.84 Lacs
12, Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of : Mr. Ashish Kedia
the person who may be contacted in case of any querieson : Company Secretary
the BRSR report. . 033:22309601-03
. nbifinance@ymail.com
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this The disclosures under this report are made on
report made on a standalone basis(i.e., only for the Standalone basis.
entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e., for the entity and
all the entities which form a part of its consolidated
financialstatements, taken together).
II. Products/services:
14, Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover) :
S. Description of MainActivity | Description of Business % of Turnover of the entity
No. Activity
1. |The Company is a| The Company operates| The Company’s primary sources of
Systemically Important Non- | primarily as  other | income consist of dividends, interest,
Deposit taking NBFC | Financial activities with | and gains onsale of investments. This
registered with Reserve Bankof | investments mainly in | constitutes almost 100% of the
India as an Investment & |shares & securities. company’s income.
Credit Company.
J
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15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity's turnover):
5. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover
Mo. contributed
1. |INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 13010 100.00%
2, |COMMERCIALLOAN 13005 0.00%
IBCTIVITIES
1. Operations:
16. Number of locations where plants andfor operations/offices of the entity are situated:
Location Number of plants Mumber of offices Total
Mational 1 1
International
The Company cperates from one location from its Registered Office situated in Kolkata, India.
17. Warkets served by the entity:
a. Mumber of locations
Locations Mumber
Mational (No. of States) 1 {West Bengal)
International [No. of Countries)
b. Whatisthe contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
Mot applicable
C.  Abriefon types of customers
The Company is @ non-depaosit taking non-banking financial company, primarily involved in investments
in eqguity shares and equity-related securities etc. It does not have any customer interface.
V. Employees
1B, Details as at the end of Financial Year:
a. Employees and workers {incdluding differently abled) :
5. | Particulars Total Male Female
No. W Nepg) | T No.(C) | %(C/A)
Employees
1. | Permanent (D) 5 5 100.00% - 0.00%
2. | Other than Permanent (E) -
3. | Tetal employees (D + E) 5 5 100.00% - 0.00%
Workers
4. | Permanznt (F) -
5. | Other than Permanent (G} -
6. | Total workers (F+G) -
J
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b. Differently abled Employees and workers ;
5. | Particulars Total {4) Male Female
e No. [B] K[B/A | NooC) KICT8)
Employees

1. | Permanent (D)

2. | Other than Permanent (E)

3. | Total differently abled employees

(D+E]
Differently Abled Workers

4. | Permanent [F)

5. | Other than permanent |G)

5. | Total differently abled workers

{F+G)
19.  Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women :
Total No. and percentage of Females
[A) Ho. [B) I (B A)
Board of Directors E 2 25%
Key Management Personngl* 2
*Mr. AshshKedio(Company Secretary) and Mr s P Kumar (Manoger & CFO)are the Key Monagement Personnel of the Company.
20, Turnower rate for permanent employees and workers:
FY 2022-13 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total
Permanent - 100% 20% 25% 100% 40% - - -
Employees
Permanent
Workers - - .
J
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)
1. [a) Names of holding / Subsidiary / Associate Companies [ loint Ventures:
5 Name of the holding) Imdicate whethar % of shares Doss the entity indicated at column A,
Mo. subsidiary/ associate | holding/ Subsidiary/ | heldbylisted | participate in the Business Responsibility
companies/joint Associatef Joint Vienture | entity initiatives of the listed entity?
wanturas [A] (a5 /No)
VL CSR Details
22, (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yas
(ii) Turnower(inRs): 122824155
(iii} Net worth {in Rs.) - 213853.25 Lacs
* Average of previous 3 financiol years.
VIL Transparency and Disclosures Compliances
23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles [Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines onResponsible
Business Conduct:
There wasnocase ofviolationofthe Code of Conductin2022-23 and no casewasreported under the Com pany'swhistle
blower policy during the year.
Stakeholder group Grievance FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
fromwhom Redrassal
complaint is Mechanizmin
received Placa | Yes/MNo)
“f_lfesr then_ Mumberof | Mumberof com- | Remarks | Numberof | Mumberof com- | Remarks
prcnru:l_e wab-link com- plaints pending com- plaints
f‘”ET'E"'a"FE plaints resolution at plaints pendingresalu
redress palicy) filed dose of the year filed tion at closa of
during the during the the year
year year
Shareholders & http:/jwws.nbi- 1 1
Employess indiz.co.in/polici
les.shtml
Stakeholder group Grievance FY 2022-23 F¥ 2021-22
f“"""'_“"" ol H'Edm"fﬂl_ Mumberof | Mumberof com- | Remarks | Mumbercf MNumberof Remarks
EREEne Frm[:mm] com- plaints pending| com- com- plaints
T.r h = plaints resolution at plaints pending
{17 Yes, then filed | closeof the year filed resclution at
Pl'f:Wﬂ_E web-link during during the dose of the
TErIEvance
redress palicy] the year b= o=
Shareholders Yes 1 Resolved - - -
Employees NO - -
Customers Not - -
Applicable
Value Chain Fartners| Not Applicable - -
Other (please Not . N
specify) Applicable
y,
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24, Overview of the entity's material responsible business conduct issues
Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and
social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to
adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as perthe following format :
The most relevant material Issues identified for:
1 Governance/Economics Corporate Governance and Ethics
2. Social TalentManagement
3. Governance/Economic Sustainable Investing
The details of each of the material issues is detailed in the table below :
1. Corporate Governance and Ethics
Indicata Rationale for identifyingthe risk/ In case of risk, approach to Financialimplications ofthe risk or
whether risk Opportunity adapt or mitigate opportunity [Indicate positive or negative
or opportunity implicatians]
(RO}

Risk +  MNBlstakeholders il Financial implications will be
seek accountability for negative as  poor corporate
compliant, ethical and governance or unethical practices
transparent business lead to loss of confidence of
conduct stakeholders.

2. Talent Management
Indicate Ratignale for identifyingthe In case of risk, approach to Financial implications ofthe risk or
whether risk or rizkopportunity adaptor mitigate opportunity (Indicate positive o nagative
opportumity implications]
(RfO)
Opportunity A good talent pool will help | The Company | Good talent management will
NEl  dewvelop leadership | encourages its | have positive financial
capakilities among its | employees to| implications as it will give a
employees and ensure |undertake functional | competitive edge to the
continuity of business. and soft-skill training | company and ensure continuity
programs. of business.
3. Sustainable Investing
Indicate whether | Rationale for identifyingthe Ini case of risk, approach to Financial implications ofthe risk or
risk or opportunity risk/opportunity adapt or mitigata opportunity [Indicate positiva or
[RfO) negative implications]
Opportunity ¢+ The global trend of The Company looks |The financal implications will
investment is now to invest in | be positive. If NBI invests in
inclined towards companies which | companies that hawve good
sustainable portfolios demonstrate good | ESG performance, it is likely
+  Companies with ESG practices. tr'!ﬁ; th.e risk .adeUStEd returns
good EEi willbe improved.
JSustainability
performance are
shown to be delivering
better returns over the
long term.
J
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adoptingthe

NGREC Principlesand Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions

international codes/
certificationsflabels/ standards (e.g.
Forest Stewardship Council,
Fairtrade, Rainforest  Alliance,
Trustea) standards (eg. SA B0OO,
OHSAS, IS0, BIS) adopted by your
entity and mapped fto each
principle.

P P P P P P P P P
1 2 & 4 5 13 7 8 9
Policy and Management Processes
1.a. Whether your entity’s palicy/ policies Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
cover each principle and its
core elements of the NGRECs.
[Yes/No)
b. Has the policy been approved Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
bythe Board? (Yes/Mo)
¢ Web Link of the Policies, if " Prohibition of Insider Trading
awvailable. g Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
g Whistle Blower Policy
g Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
All the Policies are available on the website of the Company.
2. Whether the entity has translated the Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
policy into procedures. [Yes [No)
3. Do the enlisted policies extend teyour |The policies have been communicated te all the stakeholders based on their
value chain partners? {Yes{No) relevance.
4. Mame of the naticnal and Mo Mo Mo Mo Mo Mo No Mo Mo

5. Specific commitments, gosls and
targets set by the entity with
defined timelines, if any.

in section C of this Report.

The Company has developed detailed action plans and goals for each of thematerial
issues aligned with the NGRBC principles, these will b2 detailed under therslevant principle

6. Perfermance of the entity against the
specific commitments, goals and
targets along-with reasons in case
the same are not met.

Detailed under the relevant principles in section C of this Report.

N\
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Disclosure Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 [ 7 B 9
Governance, Leadership and Oversight
7. 5tatement by Director responsiblefor | The Company is deeply committed to achieving ESG-related objectives and
the business responsibility report, | continues to prioritize related agenda over the near and medium term. The Company’s
highlighting ESG related | focus on ESG parameters is best reflectad through values that are imbibed in all spheres
challenges, targets and | of activity of the Company
achievemnents (listed entity has
flexibility regarding the placement
of this disclosure
8. Details of the highest authority
respansible for implementationand i
. ) Board of Directors
aversight of  the Business
Responsibility policyiiss).
9. Does the entity have a specified
Committee of the Board/ Director . o .
) - ) Yes, Corporate Social Responsibility Committes
responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes /| Details on: hitp://www_nbi-india_co.in/policies shtml
Maj. If yes, provide details.
10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:
Subject for Review Indicate whether review was undertaken by Fregquency
Diractor | Committeeof the Board, Any [Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/&ny
ather Committee other — please specify)
P (P |P |P |P |P |P|P (P (P |P |P|P |P |PF |P [P (P
1 {2 |3 |4 |5 |6 |7 |8 (9 (1 |2 |3 |4 |5 |6 |7 (8 (9
Performance against 4= a practice, policies on business responsibility of the Company are reviewed
Above policies and follow up action periodically or on a need basis by the Management Team. During this
assessment, the efficacy of the policies is reviewed and necessary changes to
policies & procedures are implemented.
Compliance with statutory
requirements of relevance to the | All compliance requirements with respect to the NGRBC principles have beenfulfilled.
principles, and, rectification of any non-
compliances
11. Has the entity carried out P P P P P P P P P
independent assessment/ 1 2 3 4 5 & 7 & El
evaluation of the working of its
policies by an external agency?
[Yes/Ma). If yes, provide name ofthe Mo
BEENCY.
J
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Disclosure Questions P P P P P P P P
2 3 4 5 [ 7 ] 9
12, If answer to question (1) above is "Mo”i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:
The entity does not consider the
Principles  material to s business
[Yes/MNa)
The entity is not at a stage whereit is
in a position to formulate and
implement the policies on specified
principles (Ves/No) All Principles are covered by the Policies.
The entity does not have the financial
orfhuman @&nd technical resources
available for the task (Yes/No)
Itis planned to be done in the next
financial year [Yes/No)
Any other reason (please specify)
SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMAMCE DISCLOSURE
This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with
key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators
are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be woluntarily
disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their guest to be sccally, environmentally and ethically
responsible.
PRINCIPLE 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, Transparentand
Accountable.
Essential Indicators
1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year :
Segment Total number of training and Topics | principles covered %age of persons in respective category
awarensssprogrammes held under the training and its covered by the FWarensss
impact programmes
Board of Directors During the year, the Board of Directers of the Company
invested their time on various updates pertaining to the
business, regulations, etc.
Key
Managerial Personnel KMP -1 - Anti-money laundering
Employees other - Anti-bripery and  anti- 1o0%
than BoDand KMPs Employess other than BoDand cgrruptiun
KMPs - 1 - Whistle blower
- Prevention of Sexual
Harassment &t the
Workplace
Workers Mot applicakle Mot applicable Mot applicable
J
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2. Details of fines / penalties fpunishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlament amount paid in proceedings (by the entity or by
directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format
(Mote: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity's website) :

Mot Applicable a5 no fines or penalties have been paid in the reporting period.

Monetary
MGREC Mame of tha Amount | Brief of tha |Hasan appeal baen
Principle regulatory/ [in Rs] Case |preferred? [Yes/No)
enforcement agencies)
judicial institutions
Penalty/ Fine
Settlement NIL
Compounding Fee
Mon-Monetary
NGRBC Name of the Amount{ln  [Briefofthe | Hasanappesl heenpreferrad?
Principle regulatory/ Rs.) Case (YesiNo]
enforcemant agencies/
judicial institutions
Imprisonment
- NIL
Punishment

3. Ofthe instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where monetaryor non-
monetary action has been appealed.

(ase Details Name of the regulatory/enforcement agencies/
Judicial institutions
Nat
applicable
4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide a web-
link to the policy.
No

5. MNumber of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any lawenforcement
agency forthe charges of bribery/ corruption::

Mo such action taken during the financial year 2022-23 and 2021-22.

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest ;
Mo such action taken during the financial year 2022-23 and 2021-22.

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken byregulators law
enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.

Mot applicable.
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Leadership Indicarors

1. Awareness programs conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Total Number of awarenessprograms Topics/principles covered underthe % of value chain partners covered|by the
held training value of business done with such partners)
under the awareness programs

Mot applicable since the Company is an Investment company.

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the Board? (Yes/No) If Yes,
provide details of the same.
Tes, every Director of the Company disclozes hiz'her concern or inferest in the Company or compenies or bodies
corporate, firms, or other association of mdividuals and anmy change therem, ammually or upon any change, which
mecludes the shareholding.
Further, & declaration is also taken annually from the Directors under the Code of Conduct confirming that they
will always act i the interest of the Company and ensure that any other business or personzl association which
they may have, does not involve any conflict of interest with the operations of the Company and the role theremn.

In the Meetings of the Board, the Directors abstain from participating i the items m which they are concerned or
interested.
PRINCIPLE 2: Businesses shoubd provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure [capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental and
social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by theentity, respectively.

FY2022-23 FY2021-22 Details of improvements in
environmental and social impacts

R&D
Capex

Mot applicable

2. a Doesthe entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? [Yes/No)
Nat Applicable
b. I yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?
Nat Applicable

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end oflifie, for (a) Plastics
[including packaging) (b) E-waste [c) Hazardous waste and [d) other waste,

Not applicable. The Company is engaged only in investment activities as @ Non-Banking Financial Company and does not
have any goods and raw materials utilization as a part of its products and services.

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity's activities (Yes [/ No). If yes, whether the waste
collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not,
provide steps taken to address the same.

No.

N\
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Leadership Indicators

1. Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective [ Assessments [LCA) for any of its products {for manufacturing industry) or for its
services [for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format?

MIC Mame of % of total Boundary for which thelife | Whether conducted by Results communicated in  public
Code Product/ | Turmower Cycle Parspactive | independent external domain (Yes/No]i yes, provide the web-
Service contributed |  Assessment wasconductad agency|Yes/MNo) limk.

Mot Applicable

2. Ifthere are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or disposalof your products [
services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective [ Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly describe the same along-
with action taken to mitigate the same.

Mot applicable.

3. Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production [for manufacturing industry) or
providing services (for service industry).

Indicate input material Recycled or re-used input material to total material

FY 2022-23 | Y 202122

NIL

4, Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, recycled, and safely
disposed, as per the following format :

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Re-Used Recycled Safely Re-Used Recycled Safely
Disposed Disposed
Plastics (including packaging) - - - - - N
E-waste - . - . - .
Hazardous waste - - - - - N

Other waste - - - - - N

Note: The Company is committed to responsible waste management and takes measures to dispose of e-waste, and other
waste in an environmentally sustainable manner.

5. FReclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product category.
Mot applicable.

N\
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PRINCIPLE 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their value chains
Essential Indicators
1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees :
Category % of Employees covered by
Total Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
A) Insurance Insurance Benefits Benefits Facilities
Humber %(8 | Number HIC | Number %[0 | Number %IE | Number % (F
B) |/ ] {4 o |/ [E) L] (F) fA
Permanent employees
Male - -
Female - . .
Total - -
Other than Permanent employees
Male
Female The Company does not have employees otherthan Permanent Employees.
Total
b.  Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
Category % of Workers coverad by
Total Health Accident Maternity Total Health
[A) Insurance Insurance benefits [A) Insurance
Number % (B | Number %(C | Number %(D | Number %(E | Number %IF
B |/A €] A o /A e /A B /N
Permanent workers
Male
Female The Company does not employ workers.
Total
Other than Permanent workers
Male
Female The Company does notemploy temporary workers.
Total
J
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial Year and Previcus Financial Year.
Benefits FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
MNo. of Mo. of workers Deducted and Mo. of Mo. of Deducted and
employees covered as deposited with employees workers deposited with
covered as a ¥ 2% of toal the authority covered as 2% covered a5 3% the i
of total workers (¥ oftotal of total [vyimna.)
employees employees workers
PF 100 Mot Applicable ¥ 100 MA. ¥
Gratuity 100 Mot Applicable N.A. 100 N.A. N.A.
Super- - Mot Applicable N.A. 0 M.A. N.A.
annuation
Fund/ NP3
3.  Accessibility of workplaces Are the premises | offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the
requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20067 If not, whether any stepsare being taken by the entity in this
regard.,
Mot Applicable, as no differently abled employees are in the employment of the Company.
4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 If so, provide aweb-link
tothe policy.
Mo
5. Returntowork and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave,
Gender Permanent Employess Permanent Waorkers
Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work Retention Rate
rate
Male
Female Mo such instances reported. Mot applicable
Total
B. s there @ mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and worker? If yes,
give details of the mechanismin brief.
Yes / Mo If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief
Permanent werkers
Does not have any workers
Otherthan permanent workers
Does not have any workers
Permanentemployess Any employee having issues with frelated to work may contact senior
management freely.
Otherthan permanentemployess The Company does not have employees other than Permanent Employees.
J
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7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognized by the listed entity :

Category FY2022-23 FY2021-22
Total No. of employees % (54} Total Mo. of employees | % (0 /()

employees [ wrorkersin employees [ workersin

[ workersin respactive [ erorkers in respective

respective category, wheare respective category, who

category part of category (C) are partof
14] association(s) or association{shor
Union Union
(8] (o)
Total - - - - - -
Permanent
Employees
- Male - - - - - -
- Female - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Permanent
Workers
- Male
- Female Not applicable.
8. Denails of training given to employees and workers :

Category FY2022-23 FY2021-22

Total On health and On skill Total On health and On skill

{A) safety measures upgradation D) safety measures upgradation
Number % [B Number %(C Number %IE Number %(F
(8] L] (€] L] 1E) ] (F) ]
Employees
Male 5 - - 4 B0% - - - 2 405
Female - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - -
Workers

Male
Female Mot applicable.
Total

N\
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9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Category FY2022-23 FY2021-22

Total{A} Mumber{B) | %(B/&) Total|C) Number{D] % (C/D]

Employees
Male - - - - - -

Female - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -

Workers

Male
Female
Total

Not applicable

10. Health and safety management system :
a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/Mo).|
Ifyes, the coverage such system?—

No, the nature of the operations of the Company do net involve any critical occupational health and safety risks.

b. What are the processes used to identify work-refated hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-routinebasis by the
entity?
Mot Applicable

C. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work-related hazards and to remove themselves fromsuch risks.
(Y/m)-
Not applicable

d. Dothe employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services?[Yes/ No)-
Yes

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number Category FY2022-23 FY2021-22
Lost Time Injury Frequency Employees
Rate [LTIFR] [per one million-
person hours worked) ‘Workers Mot applicable Mot applicable
Total recordable work- Employees
related injuries - -
‘Workers Not applicable Not applicable
MNo. of fatalities Employees
‘Workers Not applicable Not applicable
High conseguence work- Employees
related injury or ill-health
{excluding fatalities) Workers Mot applicable Net applicable
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12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

The Company provides a safe and healthy work place to its employees.

13. Number of Complaints an the following made by employees and workers:

Category

FY2022-23

FY2021-
22

Filed
during the
year

Pending
resolution
at the end of

year

Remarks

Filed
during
the year

Pending
resolution
atthe end of

year

Remarks|

Working Conditions

Health & Safiety

MIL

14. Assassments for the year :

Filed during the year

% of your plants and offices that were assessed [by entity or|

statutory authorities or third parties)

Heglth and safety practices

100%

Working Conditions

1005

15 Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and onsignificant risks |

concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions.

There were no safety related incidents or risks/concerns related to health and safety.

Leadership Indicators

1. Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A) Employees(Y/N)(B)

Workers (Y1)
Mo

2. Providethe measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and depositedby the value

chain partners.

The Company does not have value chain partners.

3. Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury [ ill-health

[ tatalities (as reported in Q11 of Eszential Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and placed insuitable
employment or vihose family members have been placed in suitable employment :

Category

Total no. of affected employees/

workers

Mo. of employees/workers that are
rehabilitated and placed in suitable

employment or whose family members have

been placed in suitableemployment

FY 2022-13 FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Employees

Workers

MIL

N\
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4. Doestheentityprovidetransitionassistance programstofacilitate continued employabilityand the managementof career
endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? [Yes, No)

Yes
5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:
% of value chain partners (by value of business
donewith such partners) that were assessed
Health and safety practices MNot applicable.
Working Conditions Mot applicable.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.
Not applicable.

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

The key stake — holder groups have been identified by the Company through materiality exercise.
2. liststakeholdergroups identified as key for yourentity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholdergroup.
Stakeholder Group Whether Channels of Fraquency of Purpose and scope of
identifiad as communication(Email, engagement  [Annuallyf engzgement incleding
Vulnerable & SM3, Newspaper, Half yaarky/ key topics and concams
Marginalizad Pamphiets, Quarterhyfothers—please raised during such
Group Advertizement, specify) engagement
[Yes/MNa) Community W estings,
Matica Board, Wahsite),
Other
Employees No Circulars / Mestings As & when required -
Share- holders No Meeting Annual -
Community No Meeting Annual -
around Co's
establishment
Leadership Indicators

1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social

topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.
The Company has always maintained that a constant and proactive engagement with key stakeholders enables the
Company to better communicate its strategies and performance. A contineous engagement helps align expectations,
thereby enabling the Company to better serve its stakeholders. The Board is provided with feedback from consultation
frem time to time by the senicr management.

2. 'Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and social
topics {Yes [ Mo). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on thesetopics were
incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/

marginalized stakeholder groups.
Not Applicable
y,
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PRINCIPLE 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy[ies) of the entity, inthe

following format:

Category

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Totzl

1]

MNo. of

employees
[ workerscowered (B)

%(8/A) Toml No. of
8] employees

| workers

covered (D)

[o/c|

Employees

Permanent

Otherthanpermansnt

Total Employees

Workers

Permanent

Otherthanpermansnt

Total Workers

Mot applicable.

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format :

Category

FY2022-23

FY2021-22

Total

{a]

Equal to
Minimum Wage

More than
Minimum Wage ]

Total Equal to Minimum

Wags

More than
Mimimum Wage

Mumbear

()

%8/ | Mumber
Al [c)

sic/ MNumber(E)
Al 0]

%Il

Mumber{F)
0

%IF

Employees

Permanent

Male

Female

Other than
Permanent

Male

Female

Not applicable.

Workers

Permanent

Male

Female

Not applicable.

Other than
Permanent

Male

Female

Not applicable.

3. Details of remunerationsalary/wages, in the following format :

Male

Female

Number

Median remuneration
salary/ wages of respective

Number

category

catagory

Median remuneration/
salary/ wages of respective

Board of Directors (BoD)

N 2

NA

Eey Managerial Personnel

20.48 Lacs 1

0.40 lacs

and KMP

Employees other than Bolr

20.50 Lacs 0

NA

Workers

0 0

WA

N\
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4. Dovyou have a focal point {Individual/ Committae) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issuescaused
or contributed to by the business? (Yes/Mo)

Mo.
5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

The Campany is committed to maintaining 3 safe and harmonious business environment and work place for everyone
irrespective of ethnicity, region, race, caste, gender, religion, disability sexual orizntation et

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers :

FY2022-23 FY 2021-22
Filed during Pending Remarks | Filed during Pending Remarks
the year resolution at the year resolutionat
the end ofyear the endof
year
Sexual Harassment
Discrimination atworkplace
Child Labour
NIL
Forced Laboury Involuntary Labour
Wages
Other HumanRights relatedissues

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimingtion and harassment cases.

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and
harassment cases.

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)
No.
0, Assessments for the yean:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entityor statutory

authorities or third parties)
Child labour
Forced/finvoluntary labour
Senual harassment
Discrimination at workplace 0.00%

Wages
Others— please specify

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or undenway to address significant risks | concemns arising fromthe
assessments at Question 9 above.

Not applicable.
Leadership Indicators

1. Details of a business process being modified [ introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievances/
complaints.

None, due to NIL grievance.

2. Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due diligence conducted.

Mone.

3. s the premisefoffice of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the Rights ofPersons with
Disabilities Act, 20167

Yes
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4. Details on assessment of value chain partners :
% of your plants and offices that were assessed by entityor
siatutory authorities or third parties)
Sexual Harassment
Discrimination at workplace
Child Labour
Forced Labour/ Involuntary Labour Not applicable
Wages
Others— please specify
5. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks [ concems arising fromthe
assessments at Question 4 above.
Mone.
PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environmentEssential Indicators
1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:
Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total electricity consumption [A) Not applicable Not applicable
Total fuel consumption (B) Not applicable Mot applicable
Energy consumption through other sources (C) Not applicable Mot applicable
Total Energy Consumed [A+B+C) Not applicable Not applicable
2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve
and Trade [PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? [¥/M) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have
been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, ifany:
Not applicable.
3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:
The Company's usage of water is primarily restricted to employees’ consumption purposes.
4. Has the entity implemented 8 mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and
implementation:
Mot Applicable.
5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format ;
Parameter Please specify unit BY 2022-13 FY 2021-22
MNOx
30K
Particulate matter (PM)
Persistent organic The Company is @ non-banking financial co. and its direct emissions
pollutants (POP) are limited.
Volatile organic compounds (VOC)
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)
Others— please specify
J
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6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the followingformat :
Parameter Unit FY M22-23 FY 2021-22
Total Scope 1 emissions [Brezk- up of the GHG into CO2, CH4, W20 HFCs, PRCs, MIL Maons
SFE, MF3, if available]
Total Scope 2 emissions (Breask- up of the GHGE inte CO2, CH4, N20 HFCs, PRCs, MIL Mone
SFE, NF3, ifavailable)
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of turnover Nesligible Negligible
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intansity [optional|
= the ralevant metric may besslected by the entity
7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details ;
No
8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format :
Parameter | FY 2022-53 Fran1n
Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)
Plastic waste {A) MNegligile Negligible
E-waste (8] Mot applicable Mot applicable
Bio-medical waste () Mot applicable Not applicable
Construction and demolition waste (D) Not applicable Not applicable
Battery waste (E) Mot applicable Not applicable
Radioactive waste (F) Not applicable Not applicable
Other Hazard ste. Pleasz specify, ifany. (6]
er Hazardous waste. Please specify, ifany. [G) Not applicable Not applicable
Other Nen-hazardous waste generated (H).
Please specify, ifany. ) .
Mot applicable Mot applicable
{Break-up by composition i.e. by materials PP PP
relevant to the sector]
Total (48 +C+0+E+F+ G+ H) Negligible MNegligible
Parameter | FY 2022-23 FY 202122
For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recoveryoperations (in metric
tonnes)
Category of waste
{i] Recycled Mot available Nat available
(i} Re-used Mot available Nat available
{iii} Other recovery operations Mot available Wat available
Total Not available Mot available
For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)
Category of waste
(1) Incineration Mot applicable Not applicahle
{ii} Landfilling Mot applicable Not applicable
{iiiy Other disposal operations Mot applicable ot applicable
Total Mot applicable Not applicable
J
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0.  Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted by your company to
reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to manage such
wastes:

Not applicable.

10. If the entity has operations/offices infaround ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries,
biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental
approvals [ dearances are required, please specify details in the following format :

5. Location of Type of Whether the conditions of environmental approval
Mo. operations/ operations / clearance are being complied with? [Y/N) If no, thereasons
offices thereof and corrective action taken, if any.
Mot applicable.

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, inthe

current financial year:
Mame and brief EIA Date Whether conductedby Results Relevant
details ofproject Notification independent extamal communicated in Web link
Ho. agency [Yes [ No) public domain
[¥es/No)

Mot applicable.

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law) regulations/ guidelines in Indiz; such as the Water Prevention and
Control of Pollution) Act, Air [Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protectionact and rules thereunder [¥/N). If
not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format ;

Not applicable.

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiples] from renewable and non-renewable
sources, inthe following format

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Total electricity consumption [A) Not applicable Nat applicable
Total fuel consumption (B) Not applicable Mot applicable
Energy consumption throuwgh other sources(C) Not applicable Net applicable
Total Energy Consumed [A+B+() Not applicable MNat applicable

2. Provide the following details related to water discharged:
Not applicable.

3. Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres) ;
Foreach facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:
{1l Mame of the area
(i} Mature of operations

(iii] Waterwithdrawal, consumption and discharge

Not applicable.

N\
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4. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:
Parameter Unit FY 2002- 23 FY 2021-22
Total Scope 3 emissions (Brezk-up of the GHG into CO2,
CH4,N2O, HFCs, PFCs, Mot applicable Mot available
SF6, NF3, if available]
Total Scope 3 emissionsper rupes of turnower Negligible Not avzilable
Total Scope 3 emission intensity [optional] — therelevant]
metric may be selected by the entity
5. With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Essential Indicators above, providedetails of
significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-with preventionand remediation
activities:
Mot applicahle.|
6. If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve resource
efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please providedetails of the same
as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format :
5, No. Initiative undertaken| Details of the initiative (Web-link, if Qutcome of the
any, may be providedalong-with initiative
summary)
1 i Mot applicable
None Not applicable
7. Doestheentity have a business continuity and disaster management plan?
Yes
8. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the walue chain of the entity. What
mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard :
No such incident has occurred as the entity has mo value chain.
0. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for
environmentalimpacts:
Mot applicable.
PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner thatis
responsible and transparent
Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.
I, List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations [determined based on the total members of suchbody) the
entityisamember of/ affiliated to.
5. No. Mame of the trade and industry Reach of trade and industry chambers/associations
chambers/associations (5tate/National)
MIL
2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- competitive conduct by theentity,
based onadverse orders from regulatory authorities.
Mame of Authority Brief of Case Corrective action taken
Not Applicable
y,
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Leadership Indicators
1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:
Not applicable
PRINCIPLE 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable developmentEssential

Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments [51A) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in thecurrent

financial year:
MName and briefdetails | SlA notification Date of Whether conducted Results Relevant web
of the project Mo, niotification by anaxternal agency communicated on link
{¥es/Ma) the public domain
(¥es/No}

Mot applicable.

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement [R&R) is being undertakenby your
entity, inthe following format:

Mame of tha State District Mo. of project affected | % PAFs coveradby Amount paid tothe
project for which families{PAFs) R&R PAFs in FY [In Rs|
R&R songoing

Mot applicable.

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community:
The Company is committed to contributing to the empowerment of institutions which serve the community.

4. Percentage of input material {inputs to total inputs by value] sourced from suppliers :

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small
producers

- — . Not applicable.
Sourced directly from within the district

and neighbouring districts

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact Assessments
(Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above) :

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

Mot applicable

2. Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational districtsas
identified by government bodies:

State Aspirational District Amount Spent [Fs inlacs)

Mot Applicable Mot Applicable MIL

3. (a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers
comprising marginalized fvulnerable groups? (Yes/No):

No
(b) Fromwhich marginalized fvulnerable groups do you procure?

Mot applicable.
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() Wnhat percentage of total procurement [by value) does it constitute?
Mot applicable.
4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity (inthe
current financial year), based on traditional knowledge
5. No. Intellectual Property Owmed, Acquired | Benefit shared Basis of calculating
based on traditional [Yes/MNo) [¥es / No) benefit share
knowledge
Mot applicable
5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related
disputes wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved ;
Name of authority Brief of the case Corrective action taken
Maone.
6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects
5 Mo, Beneficiary Project Mo. of persons % of beneficiaries from vulnerable and
Mams benefitted fromCSR marginalized groups
Projects
Mot Applicable this - - -
financial year
PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible mannerEssential
Indicators
1. Describe the mechanismsin place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.
The Company does not have a customer interface as it is not involved in consurmer product sale § distribution.
2. Turmover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry informationabout:
As a percentage of total turnover
Environmental and social parametsrs relevant to
the product Mot applicable.
Safe and responsible usage
Recycling and/or safe disposal
3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Received Pending Remarks Received Pending Remarks
during the resolution atend during the resolution atend
year ofyear year ofyear
Diata privacy
Acvertising
Cyber-security
Delivery of essential
SErvices NIL
Restrictive Trade
Practices
Unfair Trade Practices
Other
J
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4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues :
Number Reasons for recall
Veluntary recalls
Mot applicable.
Forced recalls

5. Does the entity have a framework) policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No] If available provide a
web-link of the policy.

Yes. It is not hosted on the website of the Company.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery of essential
services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty | action
taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products | services.

Mot applicable.

Leadership Indicators

1. Channels { platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide weblink, if

available).

The Company is an investment company and does not deal in any consumer products.

2. Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or services.

Not applicable.

3. Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.

Not applicable.

4. Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local laws?

[Yes/Mo/Not Applicable] If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction

relating to the major products | services of the entity, significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole?

[Yes/No)

Mot applicable.

5. Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

d)  Mumber of instances of data breaches along-with impact.

MIL.
b) Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers,
MIL.
J
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited (“Company”) is pleased to present
the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2023.
Corporate governance is about promoting fairness, transparency, accountability,
commitment to values, ethical business conduct and about considering all stakeholders'
interests while conducting business. This Report includes a review of how corporate
governance acts as the foundation for our corporate activity and is embedded in our business
and the decisions we make. It is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (Listing Regulations), and amendments thereto.It contains the Corporate Governance
policies and practices of N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

(A) COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that corporate governance is a continuous journey towards sustainable value
creation for all the stakeholders, which is driven by our values and built on the foundation of
Assurance. Our Corporate Governance principles are a reflection of our culture, our policies,
our relationship with stakeholders and our commitment to values and built on the
foundation of assurance. The Board of Directors (“Board”) helps to ensure that we have
appropriate governance in place, both to support our operations and protect our Members'
interest. It encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's affairs
are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairnessin all
transactions in the widest sense. As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to
sound corporate practices based on conscience, openness, fairness, professionalism and
accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it thereby paving the way
for its long-term success. The requirements under the Listing Regulations mandated by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) have been fully complied with. We believe,
Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly improve
sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively strive to
achieve. The Company is fully committed to the principles of transparency, integrity and
accountability in all spheres of its operations and has been practicing the principles of good
corporate governance over the years. We are committed to meet the aspirations of all our
stakeholders. In keeping with this commitment, the Company has been upholding fair and
ethical business and corporate practices and transparency in its dealings and continuously
endeavors to review, strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedures so as to bring in
transparency and efficiency inits business.

(B) Board of Directors

The members of the Board of the Company are eminent personalities from various fields. We
believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a
long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governance. Keeping with the
commitment to the principles of integrity and transparency in business operations for good

\
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corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent
and non-independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate
the Board functions of governance and management.The Board's actions and decisions are
aligned with the Company's best interests. The Board is entrusted with the ultimate
responsibility of the management, direction and performance of the Company.The Board is
committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company's value creation. As its primary
role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and
independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities, thus
ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures. None of the
directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board / Committee meetings.

Composition

The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 and Regulation 17A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the
provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company submit
necessary disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board and/ or the
Committees of other companies with changes therein, if any, on a periodical basis. The Board
comprises of Independent and Non- Independent Directors. The directors are persons of
eminence in areas such as profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration, social
work etc. and bring with them experience/skills which add value to the performance of the
Board. The directors are selected purely on the basis of merit with no discrimination on race,
colour, religion, gender or nationality. The present composition broadly meets this objective.
The strength of the Board as on 31st March, 2023 was eight (8) members all of whom are
Non- Executive Directors. Out of them five (5) are Independent Directors (including one-
woman independent director) and three (3) are Non- Independent Directors (including one
Woman Director). Shri Ashok Bhandari an Independent Director is the Chairman of the
Board.

The Independent Directors on the Board are competent and respected professionals from
their respective fields and have vast experience in general corporate management, finance,
investment and other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the
Company. All Independent Directors make annual disclosure of their Independence to the
Company. The day to day management of the Company is conducted by the Manager subject
to the supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors. The Independent Directors
have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material financial and/or
commercial transactions between them and their relatives and the company which could
have potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion of the Board, the
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and the
Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of the management.
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Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors:
Seven Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 on the following dates:

NS::. Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors attended
1 7t May, 2022 6
2 315t May, 2022 6
3 121 August, 2022 6
4 21t September, 2022 7
5 10 November, 2022 7
6 26t November, 2022 5
7 14t February, 2023 5

Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships
Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attendance at Board Meetings and at the

previous Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee

memberships held as on 31stMarch, 2023, are given below:

Sl Name of the Category No. of Attended No. of Number of other
No. | Director Board last other Board Committee
Meetings AGM Directorship positions (@)
attended (*) As As
Chairman | Member
1 | Ashok Bhandari Independent 5 Yes 8 2 7
2 | B.L. Gaggar Non-Executive 7 No 3 - 1
3 i Riya Puja Jain Non-Executive 1 No 0 - -
4 : I1P. Mundra Non-Executive 7 Yes 5 - 1
5 | T.X. Bhattacharya Independent 5 Yes 1 - 2
6 | Debasish Ray Independent 7 Yes 0 - -
7 | Priyanka Mohta Independent 6 Yes 0 - -
8 | Sundeep Bhutoria! Independent 4 No 3 - 1
1 Appointed onthe Board w.e.f. 21.09.2022
Notes:
(*) includes directorships held in public limited Companies only.

(Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered

under Section 8of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded)
(@) includes only positions held in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship

Committee of the Board of Directors as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.
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N
Other details of directors are given below:-
Sl Name of the Director DIN Remuneration No. of
No. | Director Since Salary & other | Sitting Commission sha{'es held
compensation fee m &.
convertible
instruments
held in the
Co.
1 | Ashok 21-07-2020 00012210 NIL 57,000 NIL Nil
Bhandari
2 | B.L.Gaggar | 30-01-2004 00404123 NIL 67,000 NIL Nil
3 | Riya Puja 14-11-2014 01559454 NIL 5,000 NIL Nil
Tain
4 | IP.Mundra | 22-09-2012 00630475 NIL 71,000 NIL Nil
5 | TK. 30-06-2018 00711665 NIL 69,000 NIL Nil
Bhattacharya
6 | Debasish 27-04-2019 08387947 NIL 67,000 NIL Nil
Ray
7 | Priyanka 29-08-2020 08853818 NIL 30,000 NIL Nil
Molhta
8 | Sundeep 21-09-2022 00733800 NIL 20,000 NIL Nil
Bhutoria
Change in composition of the Board during the Current and previous financial year:-
Sl Name of the Capacity Nature of Change Effective date
No. | Director (i.e., Executive / Non-executive (resignation, appointment)
etc)
1 Sundeep Bhutoria Non- Executive Independent Appointment 21-09-2022
Director
None of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alternate director, in more than
twenty companies at the same time. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships
in more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships
of private companies that are either holding or subsidiary companies of a public company are
included; while directorships in dormant companies are excluded. For the purpose of
reckoning the directorships in listed companies, only equity listed companies have been
considered.
As per declarations received, no director serves as an independent director in more than
seven equity listed companies or in more than three equity listed companies if he/she is a
whole-time director/managing director in any listed company.
None of the directors was a member in more than ten committees, nor a chairperson in more
than five committees across all public companies in which he/she was a director.
J
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Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as highlighted herein, the attendance record
and participation of the directors in Board/Committee meetings indicates their commitment
and ability to devote adequate time to their responsibilities as Board/Committee members.

Web link for Familiarisation Program for Independent Directors is http://www.nbi-
india.co.in/policies/NBI_Familiarisation_Program.pdf

Names of the other listed entities where the director is a director alongwith category of
directorship:

S1 | Name of the Name of the Listed Entities Category of Directorship
No. | Director
1 Ashok Bhandari 1) Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 1)Independent Director
2) Maithan Alloys Ltd 2)Independent Director
3) Rupa& Co. Ltd. 3)Independent Director
4) Skipper Ltd. 4)Independent Director
5) IFB Industries Ltd. 5)Independent Director
2 Riya Puja Jain NIL NIL
3 B.L. Gaggar NIL NIL
4 JP. Mundra Western India Commercial Co. Non-Executive Non-
Ltd. Independent Director
5 T.K. Bhattacharya Western India Commercial Co. Non-Executive-
Ltd. Independent Director
6 Debasish Ray NIL NIL
7 Priyanka Mohta NIL NIL
8 Sundeep Bhutoria Petronet LNG Ltd Independent Director

None of the Non-executive Directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the
Company.

None of the directors of the Company are related inter-se

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the
below mentioned skills / expertise / competencies in the context of the business and the
sectorin which the Company is operating, for the Company to function effectively:

N\
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Financial, Regulatory /

Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function

Legal & of an enterprise, resulting in proficiency in financial management,

Risk Management capital allocation and financial reporting process or experience in
actively supervising various functions

Strategy and strategic Ability to think strategically, identify and assess strategic

planning opportunities & threats and contribute towards developing effective

strategies in the context of the strategic objectives of the Company’s
policies & priorities.

Business Exposure

Experience in driving business success with an understanding of
diverse business environments, economic conditions, culture,
regulatory framework and a broad perspective on market
opportunities including exposure in the secondary market.

Leadership

Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting
in practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic
planning and risk management. Demonstrated strengths in developing
talent, planning successions and driving change and long-term
growth

Mergers and Acquisitions

A history of leading growth through acquisitions and other business
combinations with the ability to assess ‘build or buy’ decisions.

Corporate Governance

Service on a public company board to develop insights about
maintaining board and management accountability, protecting
shareholder interests and observing appropriate governance practices

The above skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually
available with the Board asunder:-

Name of the Financial, Strategy | Business | Leadership | Mergers and | Corporate
Director Regulatory / and Exposure Acquisitions | Governance
Legal & strategic
Risk planning
Management

Ashok Bhandari v J v J/ v J/
Riya Puja Jain v v v v
BL. Gaggar v/ v v/ v v
J.P. Mundra v J v v J/
TK
Bhattacharya / / v
Debasish Ray v v v J/
Sundeep
Bhutoria / / v v
Priyanka Mohta v J v J/

N
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Independent Directors

Eminent people having an independent standing in their respective profession, and who can
effectively contribute to the Company's business and policy decisions are considered by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company, for appointment as
Independent Director on the Board. The NRC, inter alia, considers qualifications, positive
attributes, area of expertise, duties as Directors or Committee members.

Maximum tenure of Independent Directors

Interms of the Act, independent directors shall hold office for a term of up to five consecutive
years on the Board of a company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment for a second term of
upto five years on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board's report. The tenure of the independent directors is in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

Formal letter of appointment to independent directors

The Company issued a formal letter of appointment/re-appointment to independent
directors in the manner provided in the Act. As per regulation 46(2) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the terms and conditions of appointment/ re-appointment of independent
directors are placed on the Company's website.

Other Directorships

None of the Directors is a director in more than 10 public limited companies or acts as an
independent directorin more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Directorsactsasa
member of more than 10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than 5 committees across
all publiclimited companies in which he/she is a director.

Code of Conduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and the Code (the Code) is
applicable to the Directors and employees. The Code gives the guidance and support needed
for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the core values of
the Company viz. Ownership Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. All the
directors including Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance to the Code of Conduct as on March 31, 2023. A declaration to this effect, signed
by the Manager and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), annexed hereto forms part of this report.
The code is available on the official website of the company: www.nbi-india.co.in

(C) Committees of the Board

Details of the various Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March,
2023 are as under. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its charter, which defines the
scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the
Committees are placed before the Board for information or approval. During the financial
year 2022-23, the Board constituted certain Committees as required by the Reserve Bank of
India's directives, namely Assets Liability Supervisory Committee, Investment/Credit
Committee and Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee.

N\
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The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors:

1) Audit Committee,

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee,

4) Risk Management Committee,

5) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee,

6) Assets Liability Supervisory Committee,

7) Investment/Credit Committee and

8) Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee
1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation
18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee as on
31st March, 2023 comprises of three Independent Directors and one Non-Independent
director. All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting or
related financial management expertise. The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board of Directors (the "Board") of N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited, (the
"Company") in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company, including the
integrity of the audited financial results and other financial information provided by the
Company toits stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the Company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,
c) the Company'sindependent auditors' qualification and independence,
d) the audit of the Company's financial statements, and the performance of the

Company'sinternal audit function and its Independent Auditors.

Constitution of the Audit Committee
The Composition of the Committee, together with the details of the attendance of each
member as at 31st March, 2023 is given below:

-1 Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attende the
d Co.
1 TK. 30-Jun-2018 Chairman Non- Executive 5 5 Nil
Bhattacharya Independent Director
2 | Ashok 29-Aug-2020 Member Non- Executive 5 4 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
3 | Debasish 27-Apr-2019 Member Non- Executive 5 5 Nil
Ray Independent Director
4 | JP. Mundra 04-Feb-2015 Member Non-Executive Non- 5 5 Nil
Independent Director
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Terms of Reference:

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned under Part C of
Schedule Il [See Regulation 18(3)] of the Listing Regulations and section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All
the Members of the Audit Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and
understand financial statements. The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
outlined here under:

e Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal control systems
andthedisclosure of its financial information;

® Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:-

a. matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement of the Board's
Reportinterms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e.compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report.

eReviewingthe quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

e Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds
of a publicorrightsissue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up
stepsin the matter;

® Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company;

e Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;

e Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness
of audit process;

e Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

e Approval (including omnibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transactions with
related parties;

e Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of internal audit
reports;

eReviewing the findings of any observations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the Board;

eEvaluation of internal financial controls;

e Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
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adequacy of the internal control system;

*To lookinto the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

e Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

e Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances / investment by the holding company in
the subsidiary company(ies) exceeding Rs.100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments;

e Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

¢ Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

eReviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor;

eDiscussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

*To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanism;

eScrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

e Reviewing valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever necessary.

eStatement of deviations:

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, wherever
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever applicable.

e Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committee or as may be referred/assigned by the Board.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 on the following
dates:

7th May, 2022

12th August, 2022
21stSeptember, 2022
10th November, 2022
14th February, 2023

v v v v Vv

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is constituted in
compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The committee formulates the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommends to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The Committee
reviews and recommends payment of annual salaries, commission and other conditions of
appointment of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The remuneration policy is
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directed towards rewarding performance based on review of performance / achievements
on a periodical basis. No Stock option has been granted to any of the Directors during the
financial year 2022-23. The remuneration policy forms part of the Directors' Report. The
Company doesn't have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with any of the non-
executive directors. None of the Directors have been given any remuneration during the
financial year under review except Meeting Fees.

The briefterms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

(a) To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining qualifications,
positive attributes/experience for appointment and independence of a director;

(b) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and to ensure compliance with the
remuneration policy set forth by the Company;

(c) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the
board for their appointmentand/or removal;

(d) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and of
the board of directors as a whole;

(e) To extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

(f) To report on the systems and on the amount of the annual remuneration, in whatever
form, of directors and key managerial/senior management personnel to the Board.

(g) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance
of its duties.
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Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee
The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each

member at the meetings during the financial year 2022-23 is given below:

51 Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 TK. 30-Jun-2018 Chairman Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Bhattacharya Independent Director
2 | Ashok 29-Aug-2020 Member Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
3 | Debasish 27-Apr-2019 Member Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Ray Independent Director
4 | B.L. Gaggar 14-Nov-2018 Member Non-Executive Non- 2 2 Nil
Independent Director

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Two NRC Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 on the following dates:

4 31st May, 2022
> 20th September, 2022

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

® Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.

Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.

Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Company.

Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board/ Committee meetings.

Details of meeting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2023:

. . i Sitting Fees
Director Category (RS)

Ashok Bhandari Non- Executive -IndependentDirector 57,000
B.L. Gaggar Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 67,000
Riya Puja Jain Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 5,000
J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 71,000
T.K. Bhattacharya | Non- Executive -IndependentDirector 69,000
Debasish Ray Non- Executive -IndependentDirector 67,000
Sundeep Bhutoria Non- Executive -Independent Director 20,000
Priyanka Mohta Non- Executive -Independent Director 30,000

Tatal 3,86,000
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3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (SRC) of the Board is in line
with the prescribed provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations. The Committee inter alia approves transposition & transmission of shares, issue
of duplicate/re-materialised shares and consolidation & splitting of certificates, review
measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review the adherence
to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of complaints from investors
including inter-alia non-receipt of annual reports and non-receipt of declared dividends etc.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Composition of the Committee during the year 2022-23 is given below:

51 Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 | B.L.Gaggar { 04-Feb-2015 Chairman Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director
2 I TK 14-Aug-2019 Member Non- Executive 3 3 Nil
Bhattacharya Independent Director
3 | LP. Mundra 14-Nov-2018 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Three Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held during the financial year
2022-23 on-

> 10th August, 2022
> 9th November, 2022
> 20th February, 2023

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor
grievances is provided here under:

Name Ashish Kedia

Address 21, Strand Road, Kolkata- 700 001 (West Bengal).
Telephone No 033- 2230 7905

E-mail nbifinance@ymail.com

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer

The grievances received were resolved during the financial year and all the queries from the
stakeholders were attended promptly except in cases of deficiency in documents. Further
there were no pending transmission/transpositions for the year under review.

N\

69



N.B.1. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
88th Annual Report 2022-23 CIN : L65923WB1936PL.C065596

4) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been constituted in line with Regulation 21 of the
Listing Regulations. The Company has come within the top 1000 listed entities by market
capitalization as on 31st March, 2021 and the requirement to comply with Regulation 21 of
the Listing Regulations has become mandatory.

Constitution of the Risk Management Committee
The Composition of the Committee during the year 2022-23 is given below:

sl Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 | Ashok 14-Aug-2021 Chairman Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
2 i B.L. Gaggar | 14-Aug-2021 Member Non-Executive Non- 2 2 Nil
Independent Director
3 | S.P. Kumar 14-Aug-2021 Member Manager & CFO 2 2 Nil

The primary role and responsibility of the Risk Management Committee is:

i. Toformulate risk management policy which shallinclude:
¢ A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by listed
entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly,
ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be
determined by the Committee.
e Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.
e Business continuity plan.
ii. To review that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;
iii. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems and processes;
iv. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by

considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

v. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

vi. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee; and

vii. Such other aspects as the Board may consider appropriate and require from the
Committee from time to time.

viii. The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees,
in instances where there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the
framework laid down by the board of directors.
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Terms of Reference:

The briefterms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are outlined here under:

- review of strategic risks arising out of adverse business decisions and lack of
responsiveness to changes;

- review of operational risks;

-review of financial and reporting risks:

-review of compliance risks;

- review or discuss the Company's risk philosophy and the quantum of risk, on a
broad level that the Company, as an organization, is willing to accept in pursuit of
stakeholdervalue;

- inquiring about existing risk management processes and review the effectiveness
of those processes in identifying, assessing and managing the Company's most
significant enterprise-wide risk exposures;

-review periodically key risk indicators and management response thereto.

5) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board for
formulating and overseeing the execution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Committee comprises of two
independent directors and two non-executive directors. The details of the members of the
CSR Committee and their attendance at the meeting are given below:

sl Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 I TK 14-Aug-2018 Chairman Non- Executive 1 1 Nil
Bhattacharya Independent Director
2 | B.L.Gaggar | 29-Apr-2017 Member Non-Executive Non- 1 1 Nil
Independent Director
3 | I.P. Mundra 29-Apr-2017 Member Non-Executive Non- 1 1 Nil
Independent Director
4 | Debasish 27-Apr-2019 Member Non- Executive 1 1 Nil
Ray Independent Director

The Annual Report on CSR Activities as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year
ended 31st March, 2023 is attached to the Board's Report.

Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
One CSR Committee Meeting was held during the financial year 2022-23 on 27th February,
2023.
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6)

Assets Liability Supervisory Committee

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, an Asset Liability Supervisory
Committee of the Board has been constituted for implementation of the Asset Liability
Management system and to review its functions periodically. As on 31st March, 2023, the
Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Mr. B. L. Gaggar and Mr. J. P.

Mundra as members. Details of their attendance at the meetings of the Committee are as
follows:-
Sl Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held Attended the
Co.
1 | Ashok 12-Aug-2022 Chairman Non- Executive 3 3 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
2 | B.L.Gaggar | 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director
3 | IP. Mundra 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director

The primary role and responsibility of the Committee is:

° Understanding business requirement and devising appropriate pricing strategies

° Management of profitability by maintaining relevant Net interest margins (NIM)

° Ensuring Liquidity through maturity matching.

J Management of balance sheet in accordance with internal policies and applicable
regulatory requirements.

° Ensuring efficientimplementation of balance sheet management policies.

° Review reports on liquidity, market risk and capital management.

° To identify balance sheet management issues that are leading to under-
performance and ensure corrective action.

° Ensuring appropriate mix of different forms of debt i.e., Bank Loans, Commercial
Paper, Non-Convertible Debentures, etc.

° Giving directionstothe ALM team on the interest rate risk.

° ALCO delegates the daily management of liquidity risk and interest rate risk to ALM
team.

° Approving major decisions affecting NBI's risk profile or exposure (product pricing
for advances, desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental assets and
liabilities, prevailing interest rates offered by peer NBFCs for the similar
services/product, etc).

° Satisfy itself that the less fundamental risks are being actively managed, with the
appropriate controls in place and working effectively.

° Articulate the currentinterest rate review and formulate future business strategy on

this view.
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7) Investment/Credit Committee
In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, an Investment/Credit Committee of

the Board has been constituted for implementation of the Policy which will govern all
investments, including statutory investments, to be made by NBI. As on 31st March, 2023,
the Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Mr. B. L. Gaggar and Mr. J. P.
Mundra as members. Details of their attendance at the meetings of the Committee are as
under:-

Sl Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 ! Ashok 12-Aug-2022 Chairman Non- Executive 3 3 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
2 | B.L.Gaggar | 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director
3 ! J.P. Mundra 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director

8) Grievance Redressal Mechanism Committee
In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, a Grievance Redressal Mechanism

Committee of the Board has been constituted for resolving the grievances of the customers.
As on 31st March, 2023, the Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Bhandari (Chairman), Mr. B.
L. Gaggar and Mr. T. K. Bhattacharya as members. Details of their attendance at the meetings
of the Committee are as follows:-

51 Name of Member of Designation Capacity Number of No. of
No | Director Committee (i.e., Executive / Meetings of the shares
since Non-executive etc) Committee held in
Held | Attended the
Co.
1 | Ashok 12-Aug-2022 Chairman Non- Executive 3 3 Nil
Bhandari Independent Director
2 | B.L.Gaggar | 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive Non- 3 3 Nil
Independent Director
3 ! TK 12-Aug-2022 Member Non-Executive 3 3 Nil
Bhattacharya Independent Director

(D) Details of General Body Meeting
Annual General Meeting
The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special

resolution, if any, passed thereat is provided hereunder:
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Year Special
E Day, Date and Time Venue Resolutions
nded -
Passed
31t March, | Tuesday, 30 August, 2022 21.Strand Road, No
2022 at 4:00 P.M. Kolkata — 700 001
31t March, Thursday, 23 September, 21,Strand Road, Yes
2021 2021 at 10:30 A. M. Kolkata — 700 001
31t March, Monday, 28% September, 21,Strand Road, Yes
2020 2020 at 10:30 A.M. Kolkata — 700 001

Extraordinary General Meeting
An Extraordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company was held during the year

for confirming the appointment of Mr. Sundeep Bhutoria as an Independent Director on the
Board w.e.f. 21st September, 2022. The members have appointed Mr. Bhutoria by Special
Resolution to hold the office of Independent Director for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years
with effect from 21st September, 2022 upto 20th September, 2027 (both days inclusive).

Remote e-voting and ballot at the AGM
It has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, via a single login

credential, through their demat accounts/websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders will be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
e-voting service providers (ESPs). This will not only facilitate seamless authentication but also
enhance the ease and convenience of participating in the e-voting process.

The Company has engaged CDSL to provide e-voting facility to all the members. Members
whose names appear on the register of members as on the cut -off datei.e. 14th August, 2023
shall be eligible to participate in the e-voting.

The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM. Members who
have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM.

(E) Means of Communication
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to

Stock Exchange immediately upon approval by the Board of Directors and are simultaneously
published in newspapers in English and Bengali (regional language) namely Business
Standard and Sukhabar.

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern,
Quarterly Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange and are
also disseminated on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or
analysts.
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General Shareholders' Information

Annual General Meeting Monday, the 215 August, 2023 at 10.30 A.M. at

21, Strand Road, Kolkata — 700 001

Book Closure Dates: 15.08.2023 to 21.08.2023 (both days inclusive)
E-voting Dates: 18.08.2023 to 20.08.2023

Financial Year 2022-23

Dividend payment date On or after 30™ August, 2023

Listing onStockExchange | The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai — 400 051

The Company has paid the annual listing fee of the exchange for the
financial year 2023-24.

Stock Code NSE Symbol:NBIFIN
ISIN INE365101020
Dividend payment A dividend of Rs. 0.40 per share (8%) for the year ended 31st

March, 2023 on the existing Ordinary Share Capital of Rs.
122.84 lacs, if approved, would be paid, in case of shares held in
physical form, to those Members whose names appear on the
Register of Members on 14th August, 2023, after giving effect
to the transfers lodged and found to be complete and in order. In
respect of shares held in electronic form, dividend would be paid
to the beneficial owners of shares as at the end of business hours
on 14th August, 2023, as furnished by National Securities
Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Unclaimed Dividend
Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there

under, the Company has transferred the total amount of dividend which remained unpaid or
unclaimed for the year 2016-17 to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company.

Further, as per provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, any money
transferred by the Company to the unpaid dividend account and remaining unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall be transferred to a fund called the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the 'Fund') set up by the Central Government. The
members who have not yet encashed the dividend warrant(s) for the year 2016-17 (Final
Dividend) are requested to approach the Company with their warrants for re-validation/fresh
issuance.

The details of unpaid dividend and last date of transfer to IEPF are given hereunder:

Year Type of | Dividend per | Date of declaration Dividend Last date for
Dividend | share of I10/- of Dividend amount transfer of unpaid
) unpaid as dividend in
on Investor Education
31.03.2023 and Protection
(€3] Fund
2016-17 Final 1/- 16.09.2017 1,61,953 21.10.2024

N\

75



N.B.1. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
88th Annual Report 2022-23 CIN : L65923WB1936PL.C065596

N\

Transfer of shares to IEPF

Pursuant to Section 124(6) of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, all shares in
respect of which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be
transferred by the Company to the IEPF, within 30 days of such shares becoming due for
transfer. As provided under these Rules, the shareholder would be allowed to claim such
unpaid dividends and the shares transferred to the Fund by following the procedure
prescribed under the said IEPF Rules, 2016.

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Tentative Financial Calendar for the year 2023-24

Financial Year 1A pril, 2023 - 315t March, 2024

First quarter results Within 45 days of the end of the quarter
Second Quarter and Half-yearly results
Third quarter results

Fourth quarter &Annual results Within 60 days of the end of the financial year

Listing of Shares:

The Equity shares of the Company are listed at the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
(NSE).

The Company's Stock codeis : NBIFIN

The security of the Company was never suspended from trading during the year 2022-23.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L65923WB1936PLC065596

Market Price Data during financial year 2022-2023:

Month High Low

April, 2022 2345.00 2119.00
May, 2022 2495.95 1923.95
June, 2022 2399.00 1758.30
July, 2022 1915.00 1730.00
August, 2022 1890.00 1705.80
September, 2022 1939.10 1655.80
October, 2022 1888.00 1675.80
November, 2022 1800.45 1611.10
December, 2022 1746.40 1477.55
January, 2023 1738.25 1553.10
February, 2023 1695.00 1501.00
March, 2023 1719.90 1399.55
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA)

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the
Company having its registered office at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700
001. Contact N0.033-22482248, 22435029, Fax: 033-22484787. Email Id:
mdpldc@yahoo.com. RTA also maintains a website: www.mdpl.in

Penalties and Strictures
The National Stock exchange of India has imposed a Penalty of Rs. 35.93 lacs for alleged delay

in submission of certain compliance against which the Company has made representation to
the exchange which is pending.

Share Transfer System

a) Transfer of Securities held in physical Mode

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and
transposition shall be processed only in dematerialised form. Further, all requests for
duplicate issuance, splitting and consolidation too will be processed in demat mode only.

b) Nomination facility for shareholding
As per the provision of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in

respect of shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form shall file Form No
SH -13 to the RTA of the Company. Members holding shares in dematerialized form should
contact their Depository Participant (DP) in this regard.

c) Reconciliation of Share Capital
As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the

Company's share capital is being carried out by an independent external Auditor (Practicing
Company Secretary) with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and
shares held in physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The Auditors Certificates in
regard to the same are submitted to NSE, from time to time.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31/03/2023

Share Holding No of Holders % age No of Shares % age
Upto 500 5677 97.54 2,56,762 10.45
501 to 1000 84 1.44 62,526 2.55
1001 to 2000 26 0.45 36,986 1.50
2001 to 3000 9 0.16 21,375 0.87
3001 to 4000 1 0.02 3,642 0.15
4001 to 5000 2 0.03 8,800 0.36
5001 to 10000 7 0.12 50,382 2.05
Above 10000 14 0.24 20,16,333 82.07
Grand Total 5,820 100.00 24,56,806 100.00
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

Ason 31st March, 2023, 89.06% of the Company's total equity shares representing 21,88,084
equity shares were held in dematerialized form and the rest were in physical form. The
Company's equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Status of total number of shares dematerialized and in physical form as on 31st March 2023:

Depository No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital
NSDL 21,08,358 85.82
CDSL 79,726 3.24
Physical 2,68,722 10.94
Total 24,56,806 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible Instruments
The Company has notissued any GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Ms. Sneha
Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct
Secretarial Audit of records and documents of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.
The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with all the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Depositories Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchange, and all the relevant Regulations and Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable to
the Company. The audit also covers the reconciliation of share capital on quarterly basis to
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and total paid up and listed capital. The
audit confirms that the total paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of sharesin
physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL.

Address for Correspondence
Company Secretary
Ashish Kedia
21, Strand Road,
Kolkata — 700 001
Tel: 033 -22309601
Email ID: nbifinance@ymail.com
Website: www.nbi-india.co.in

Share transmissions and transpositions are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent and approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, if the documents are
completein all respects, within 15 days from the date of lodgement. The same is examined by
a Practicing Company Secretary as required under Listing Regulations and its certificate is
forwarded to NSE where the Company's shares are listed.
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SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

SEBI vide circular dated 3rd June, 2011 introduced SCORES, i.e., “SEBI Complaints Redress
System” the system of processing of investors complaints in a centralized web based
complaints redressal portal. The salient features of this system are: centralized database of all
Complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned Company and
online viewing by investors of action taken on the complaints and their current status.

The Company is registered with SEBI under the SCORES system.

Credit Ratings
No instances have occurred during the financial year 2022-23 which warrant the Company to

obtain Credit Rating.
(F) Other Disclosures

a) During the financial year 2022-23 there was no materially significant Related Party
Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large except those disclosed in the Board's
Reportand financial statements.

b) The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior management personnel.

c) The Company has adopted a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (the Code)
in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended uptodate.The code
expressly lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be
made, by the directors, promoters and the senior management personnel while dealing
with the shares of the Company on the bourse and cautioning them on the consequences
of non-compliance thereof. The Company has also formed Whistle Blower Policy. Further,
we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. Employees
can report to the Management concerns regarding unethical behavior, act or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct Policy.

o
—

The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing
Regulations.

e) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
Ms. Sneha Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary, has issued a certificate as required
under clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of
the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as director of the company by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this report.
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f) Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors:-
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor are as follows:

Tvpe of service FY 2022 23 FY 202122
Audit Fees 1,20,000 80,000
Tax Audit Fees 10,000 8,000
Others 6,000 -

g) No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman during the financial
year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable.

Non-Mandatory / Discretionary requirements of regulation 27(1) & Part E of Schedule Il of
the SEBI Listing Regulations:

Shareholders Rights:
The quarterly/half yearly results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the same are
sentto the NSE and are also posted on the Company's website.

Auditor's Opinion:
The Company's financial statements for the financial year 2022-23 do not contain any audit
qualification.

Reporting of internal auditor:
The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee.

Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading:

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor and report trading
by insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Policy also
includes code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information, initial and continual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on a need-
to-know basis. This Policy is available on our website. The Company Secretary is the
“Compliance Officer”. The Code of Conduct is applicable to all Directors and designated
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct.

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required by provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Compliance Certificate on Corporate
Governance isannexed to this Report.

CEO and CFO Certification
The Chief Financial Officer acts as Manager of the Company as well. The Manager and CFO
Certificationis provided in this Annual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.

N\

80



88th Annual Report 2022-23

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
CIN : L65923WB1936PL.C065596

CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Ltd.
(CIN: L65923WB1936PLC065596)

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (LODR), | hereby certify that:

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023, none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the company by the SEBI /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority.

Signature: Sd/

Name :SnehaAgarwal
ACSNo.:38284
CPNo :14914

Place :Kolkata
Date :14.04.2023

UDIN  :A038284E000100533
PEERREVIEW NO-2479/2022
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Ltd

I, Sneha Agarwal, Company Secretary in Practice, the Secretarial Auditor of N.B.I. Industrial
Finance Company Ltd (“the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March 2023, as stipulated
in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (collectively referred to as “Listing
Regulations”).

Management's Responsibility
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the

Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant
supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Corporate Governance Report as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether, the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in the
Listing Regulations referred to in above paragraph. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

| have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

Opinion

Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i)
of regulation 46(2) and paras C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the
year ended 31st March, 2023.

| state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Signature: Sd/

Name :SnehaAgarwal
ACSNo. :38284

CPNo :14914

Place  :Kolkata

Date :14.04.2023

UDIN :A038284E000100346
PEERREVIEW NO-2479/2022
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Manager and CFO Certification

To,

The Board of Directors,

N.B.l. INDUSTRIALFINANCE CO. LTD.
Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

I, S.P. Kumar, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, certify that:

1. I'have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of N.B.l. INDUSTRIAL
FINANCE CO. LTD and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information of the Company and the Board's Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2023. | state that:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs for the
period presented in this report and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. | accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that | have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and confirm that there have been no material
weakness in internal controls over financial reporting including any corrective actions with
regard to deficiencies.

4.1haveindicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
a.that there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during

theyear;
b. All significant changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the

same have been disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and
c. that there were no instances of significant fraud that involve management or other

employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system over
financial reporting.

5. further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this Report.

Place: Kolkata S.P. Kumar
Date: 9th June 2023 Manager and
Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBALECONOMY AND MARKETS:

The Economic scenario namely, growth, individual sustenance, fiscal deficits, and central
bank balance sheet expansion are now markedly different when we compare Europe, USA to
the large ASEAN nations. The irony is that energy shortages, inflation and banking crises in
the Western hemisphere are strangely similar to situations ASEAN countries faced in the late
1990s, except that given the luxury and comfort of being global currencies, the West is not
reeling under a currency depreciation crisis.

The global economy was recovering from the impact of successive waves of the COVID-19
pandemic by early 2022, aided by large policy stimulus and expanding coverage of
vaccination, when the war in Ukraine jolted the upturn. The gains achieved through
concerted fiscal and monetary policy interventions during the pandemic period (2020 and
2021) were undermined by the impact of the war. A generalised surge in global inflation
triggered monetary policy actions by central banks in the form of successive interest rate
increases and the pulling back of liquidity, leading to tightening of financial conditions and
together with other factors, a toll on growth which slowed from 6.2 per centin 2021 to 3.4 per
cent in 2022, according to the International Monetary Fund (IMF). Global inflation surged to
8.7 per cent from 4.7 per cent in 2021, overshooting targets in the majority of countries
through the year. Global trade (goods and services) growth slowed from 10.4 percentin 2021
to 5.1 per cent in 2022, reflecting the post-pandemic slowdown in global demand and the
restrictions on cross-border movements of goods and services imposed by the war in
Ukraine.

The US Fed is facing an acute conundrum. During the Covid-19 pandemic, the government
doled out free monies resulting in a consumption frenzy. Despite tariffs and logistics issues in
2021, the average consumer in US remained on a buying spree. Finally, the Ukraine war and
the resultant shortages brought about a sudden rise in inflation. The US Fed began to battle
inflation, albeit with a delayed lag, resulting in a sharp increase in US Fund Rates. This sudden
increase in rates did not allow investors to rebalance their portfolios and thus are left with
Mark-to-Market (MTM) losses on their safest asset — government securities. Consequently,
the US Fed is now dealing with an unforeseen banking crisis. As per the last publicly known
estimates, the US banking system is now burdened witha MTM loss of around USD 620 bn.

Empirical evidence has shown that in periods of high rates, asset bubbles burst. Two asset
classes have taken a hit — cryptocurrency and venture capital. The market capitalization of
cryptocurrency, an asset whose classification as an asset class itself has always been a
suspect, has plummeted from its peak of USD 3 tn to nearly USD 800 bn, in just over a span of
oneyear.

For the second asset class —venture capital and more appropriately, its valuation, the picture
is further opaque. With the failure of the Silicon Valley Bank, it seems a long winter has set-in
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in the start-up world. In times to come, with lack of incremental capital funding, we may
witness large layoffs and closure of many start-ups not only in the US, but world over.

These events over the past year have impacted investor sentiments negatively. Investors are
now more than ever, investing with caution. Post the aftermath of FTX, the famous crypto-
exchange, investors are allocating funds towards investments which are well understood and
regulated.

Further, the turbulence in global financial markets has ensued uncertainty in gold prices and
has once again made it a safe heaven.

INDIAN ECONOMY AND MARKETS

Amidst strong global headwinds, the Indian economy is expected to have recorded a growth
of 7.0 per cent in real GDP in 2022-23. Like many other economies, India also experienced a
surgeininflation during 2022-23, primarily reflecting the impact of overlapping global supply
shocks and pass-through of higher input costs. As a result, inflation reached a peak of 7.8 per
cent in April 2022. Overall, headline inflation increased to 6.7 per cent in 2022-23 from 5.5
per cent in 2021-22. The Central Bank had to intervene through increase in interest rates to
control the inflation. The world had also to deal with disruptions in food and energy supplies
of a magnitude which was not experienced in recent memory. The impact on India remained
marginal, mainly on account of the astute policies, faster recovery from effects of pandemic
and efficient food grain distribution by the government. Consequently, in India, large & small
companies and the services sector has not been substantially negatively impacted. Even so,
the year FY 2022-23 recorded a lower earnings growth for the Nifty 50 companies than what
was estimated by analysts at the beginning of the financial year. The Nifty 50 recorded an
approximate fall of 2.5%, but showed impressive resilience given the global circumstances &
food grain distribution, asis visible in the following chart.
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The world remains behest with nations expressing differences which could escalate further.
The year will be a test for the western world to manage political tensions and economic
disruptions. Another geo-political crisis could be disastrous for the world at large.

As for India, we remain optimistic that Indian equity indices may record double-digit returns
in FY 2023-24. Your Company's portfolio continues to be balanced between listed equities
and others. The Company's overall performance can be treated satisfactory in view of
turbulencein the stock market during the first half of the year gone by.

NBFCINDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

India's financial sector is a highly diversified one comprising commercial banks, insurance
companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds
and other smaller financial entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking and non-
banking financial companies (‘'NBFCs'). Over the past few years NBFCs have emerged as
important financial intermediaries, particularly for the small-scale and retail sectors in
underserved and unbanked areas.. The sector has turned out to be growth engine in an
environment where significant importance is assigned to financial inclusion and have aided
the economy in employment generation and wealth creation by making credit available to
the rural segment.

COMPANY'S POSITION

The Company NBI is registered with the RBI as a Non-Banking Financial Institution and is
categorized as Non-Deposit taking NBFC” (NBFC-ND). The operations of the company
continue to be centered around investments in shares and securities. The main income of the
Company is dividend income on long-term investments and profit from sale of investments.
The results of the Company's operations for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 have
been dealt with in the Director's Report.

The Company, being into finance and investment activity, the impact of movement of stock
markets affects its profitability. The Company has long-term orientation in its investments
and mainly invests in listed equities. The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk
with adequate return.

OUTLOOK

A significant portion of the Company's income arises from investment and share trading
operation, which are largely dependent on the condition of the stock market. The stock
market activity depends largely upon the economic growth momentum and a combination of
other factors like inflation, domestic savings, surging portfolio investments into India etc. The
unusual developments in the global economy may pose uncertainties and challenges for the
emerging market economies like India. However, the Company has investment policy
wherein it invests in those securities which have easy liquidity, better yield and potential for
price appreciationin mediumto long run.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented a system of internal controls and risk management for
achieving operational efficiency, optimal utilization of resources, credible financial reporting
and compliance with local laws.
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The system is aimed at covering all areas of operations. All transactions entered into by the
Company are duly authorized and recorded correctly. The internal financial controls within
the Company are commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. It has
implemented suitable controls to ensure that financial transactions are reported with
accuracy and that there is strict compliance with applicable laws and regulations. These
controls are regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness. The Company has robust policies
and procedures which, inter alia, ensure integrity in conducting its business, safeguarding of
its assets, timely preparation of reliable financial information, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and the prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the
details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately
previousfinancial year) in key financial ratios are as follows:-

Particulars Financial Year

2023 2022
GNPA (%) NIL NIL
NINPA (%) NIL NIL
Return on Assets (%) 0.21 0.36
Return on Equity (%) 0.22 0.37
Net Interest Margin (%) 100 100
Current Ratio 6.12 65
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00
Net Profit Margin (%) 51.92 64.68
EPS 2146 32.34
Price Earmings Ratio 67.66 69

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements under "Management Discussion & Analysis" describing the Company's
objectives, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are
based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results could materially differ from those
expressed or implied, since the Company's operations are influenced by many external
factors beyond the control of the Company. Investors are cautioned that the Company
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify, revise or update any forward looking
statement or opinion, on the basis of any subsequent developments, events or information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of
N. B. . Industrial Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of N. B. I. Industrial Finance
Company Limited ("the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2023, the profit and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
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addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
ourreport.

Sr. The Key audit matter Auditor’s Response
No.
1. | Valuation and Existence of Investments — | We obtained independent confirmation

of the number of units held and net asset
We have focused on the valuation and | value per unit for each of the mutual
existence of the investments in Equity, | fund units and market value for shares
Preference Shares and Mutual Funds | as at the year-end date, confirmation of
because these represent a principal element | shares and its market value.

on the mnet assets in the Financial
Statements. We have also obtained the most recent
set of audited financial statements for
Refer Note 6 to the Financial Statements. | unquoted investments.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is
the Director's report but does not include financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Management responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matter stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with IndAS prescribed under section 133
of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
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the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has norealisticalternative buttodo so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the financial
statementsin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by
management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by
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the Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of my audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Companysofarasitappearsfrom our examination of those books.

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Reportarein agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rules made
thereunder.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report given in 'Annexure B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting;

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company toits directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act; and

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position
inthe financial statements— Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii. There were no amount which were required to be transferred during the year ended
31st March 2023 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. As per the management representation provided, we report,

. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries"), with the
understanding that the intermediaries shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate
beneficiaries.

. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

° Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations given by management under
the above sub-clauses contain any material mis-statement.

° As per the records of the Company no dividend has been declared or paid during the
year. As stated in Note No 39 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the
Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance
with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to the declaration of dividend.

. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023; hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

NilimaJoshi

Partner

Membership No.52122

UDIN :23052122BGXQCC1331
Place : Kolkata

Date :24/05/2023
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Annexure-’A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year
ended 31st March 2023

[Referred to in para 1 of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' of our report]

(iY(a)  (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & Equipment.

(B) The company has no intangible assets, hence para 3(i)(a)(B)a of the Order is not
applicable tothe Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and
Equipment are verified every year. In accordance with this programme, all the Property, Plant
and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

(c)  The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, para 3(i)(c) of
the Orderis notapplicable to the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant
and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (@) The Company has no inventory hence para 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees at any point of time of
the year in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that since the company is in the business
of making investments including granting loans in the normal course of its business and
further, as it has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order are
not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company being a Non-banking Finance company,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable. Thus paragraph 3(iv) of the
Orderis notapplicable.
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(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
during the year to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder apply. Thus paragraph 3(v) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us the Central Government
has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is
notapplicable.

(vii) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues, as applicable to the Company. There are no undisputed statutory dues
payable in respect of above statues outstanding as at 31st March 2023 for a period of more
than sixmonths from the date they became payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, Goods & service
tax, cess etc. which have not been deposited as at 31 March, 2023 on account of any dispute
except:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount | Periods to which | Forum where the
(Rs. In | amount relates dispute is pending
Laes)
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax including | 21.98 A¥2018-2019 | CIT (A)
Penalty (FY 2017-2018)

(viii) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on para 3(viii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any loan or other borrowing, hence
thereis norequirementto report under clause (ix)(a) of the Order.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not been declared will full defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) Thecompany has not raised any funds by way of term loan, hence para 3(ix)(c) of the
Orderis notapplicable tothe Company.
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(d) Asnofunds have been raised during the year, hence no reporting is required under
para 3(ix)(d) of the Order.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company does
not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
paragraph 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not raised any money during the year by way
of further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of
the Orderis notapplicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures during the year. Hence
reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanation given to us, considering the principles of materiality
outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year while determining the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business and report of the Internal Auditors have been
considered by us.

N\

96



N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
88th Annual Report 2022-23 CIN : L65923WB1936PL.C065596

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company has obtained registration under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under paragraph
3(xvi)(b) of the Orderis not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the group
companies are CIC and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence
reporting under clause (xviii) of the orderis not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We further
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, with
respect to obligations under Corporate social responsibility (CSR), the company is not
required to spend towards CSR based on criteria as specified under section 134(5) of the act
during the year and there are no such ongoing projects and unspent amount related to it,
hence no reportingis required to be reported under the clause (xx)(a) and (xx)(b) of the order.
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N

(xxi) The preparation of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the
Company. Hence reporting under paragraph (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

NilimalJoshi

Partner

Membership No.52122
UDIN:23052122BGXQCC1331

Place : Kolkata
Date :24/05/2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
[Referred toin para 2(f) of the heading 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' of

ourreport]
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of N. B. I. Industrial
Finance Company Limited (‘the Company') as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the “Guidance Note”).

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating

N\
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

NilimaJoshi

Partner

Membership No.52122
UDIN:23052122BGXQCC1331

Place: Kolkata
Date :24/05/2023
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)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents a4 3.04 610.20
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 55.39 1.63
(c) Investments 6 245,701.66 219,533.43
(d) Other financial assets 7 8.48 17.55
TOTAL 245,768.57 220,162.81
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 8 43.39 40.59
(b) Property, plant and equipment 9 0.30 0.47
(c) Other non-financial assets 10 0.73 0.74
TOTAL 44.42 41.80
TOTAL - ASSETS 245,812.99 220,204.61
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Lia ies
Financial liabilities
a) Payables
Trade Payables 11
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 1.04
(b) Other financial liabilities 12 11.91 5.70
Non-financial liabilities
(a) Provisions 13 60.27 53.53
(b) Deferred tax liability {net) 14 9,965.77 6,286.93
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 15 4.73 4.16
TOTAL 10,042.68 6,351.36
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 16 122.84 122.84
(b) Other equity 17 235,647.47 213,730.41
TOTAL 235,770.31 213,853.25
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 245,812.99 220,204.61
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E
Ashok Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chairman Director
DIN - 00012210 DIN-00711665

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 052122

Sundrapandiyapuram

Pichumani Kumar Ashish Kedia

Date : 24th May 2023 Manager & CFO Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata
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N
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
R Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
(a) Interest income 18 2.34 42.37
(b) Dividend income 19 1,007.68 1,089.73
(c) Net gain on fair value changes 20 4.71 94.02
Total revenue from operations 1,014.73 1,226.12
Other income 21 0.80 2.12
Total income 1,015.53 1,228.24
Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 22 157.31 82.40
(b) Depreciation 23 0.17 0.44
(c) Other expenses 24 70.05 56.59
Total expenses ~ 227.53 139.43
Profit before tax 788.00 1,088.81
Tax expense 25
(a) Current tax 229.16 265.24
(b) Deferred tax 31.53 29.09
Tax expense 260.69 294.33
Profit for the year (A) 527.31 794.48
Other comprehensive income
{a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement (loss)/ gain on defined benefit plans 2.84 -
Tax impact on above (0.72) -
- Changes in fair valuation of equity instruments 25,034.21 {46,997.66)
Tax impact on above (3,646.58) 6,004.48
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in fair valuation of bonds/ debt instruments - 4.83
Tax impact on above - 9.36
Other comprehensive income for the year 21,389.75 {40,978.99)
Total comprehensive income for the year 21,917.06 {40,184.51)
Earnings per equity share (face value X 5 each)
Basic & Diluted (<) 26 21.46 32.34
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302137E
Ashok Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chairman Director
DIN - 00012210 DIN-00711665
Nilima Joshi
Partner
Membership No. 052122
Place : Kolkata
Sundrapandiyapuram
Date : 24th May 2023 Pichumani Kumar Ashish Kedia
Manager & CFO Company Secretary
S
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~
) {All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A. |Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 788.00 1,088.81
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 0.17 0.44
Investment written Off 0.29 -
Liability no longer required written back - (1.95)
Interest income calculated using effective interest rates (1.74) (1.59)
Net {gain)/loss on fair value changes of investment (4.71) (94.02)
{5.99) (97.12)
Operating profit/(loss} before working capital changes 782.01 991.69
Adjustments for :
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 9.07 37.86
({Increase)/Decrease in other non- financial assets 0.01 4.02
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable (1.04) 1.04
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 6.21 0.83
Increase /{ Decrease) in provision 9.58 -1.79
Increase /( Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 0.57 2.19
24.40 44.15
Cash d from op i 806.41 1,035.84
Net income tax (paid)/refund {231.96) (245.75)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A} 574.45 790.09

B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Investments {2,997.75) (5,906.00)
Sale of Investments 1,869.90 1,767.53
{Investment)/Realisation of Fixed Deposit (53.77) 270.00
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (1,181.62) (3,868.47)

C. |Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid 0.01 0.03
NET CASH FROM /(USED IN} FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} 0.01 0.03
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (607.16) (3,078.35)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 610.20 3,688.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3.04 610.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes:

i)

The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in IND AS 7-'Statement of Cash Flows'.

ii) Since the Company is an investment and finance company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of “Cash
flow from investing activities” and interest earned {net) X 0.60 lakhs {Previous year X 40.78 lakhs) and dividend earned of X 1,007.68
lakhs (Previous year X 1,089.73 lakhs} have been considered as part of "Cash flow from operating activities".

iii) Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

In terms of our report attached

For Chaturvedi & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302137E

Ashok Bhandari Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Chairman Director
DIN - 00012210 DIN-00711665

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 052122

Sundrapandiyapuram
Place : Kolkata Pichumani Kumar Ashish Kedia
Date : 24th May 2023 Manager & CFO Company Secretary
S
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.

22

23

Corporate Information

N.B.l. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("the Company") is a public company limited by
shares, incorporated on 21st December, 1936 and domiciled in India. lis shares are listed on
the National Stock Exchange (NSE). The Company is carrying on business as a "Non-Banking
Financial Company" (NBFC). The Company is engaged mainly in investment in shares in
securities & financial activity. The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as NBFC.
The Company’s registered office is 21, Strand Road Kolkata — 700 001.

The financial statements of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2023.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

"The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), and all values are rounded to
the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated."

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of IND AS requires management of the Company to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures
including disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is in respect of: fair valuation of unquoted equity investments, impairment of
financial instruments, impairment of property, plant & equipment, useful lives of property, plant
& equipment, provisions and contingent liabilities and long term retirement benefits.

)
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Significant accounting policies

Financial instruments

Classification

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets, other than equity, are classified into, Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL) or
at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as FVTPL or
FVOCI. Financial liabilities are classified as amortised cost category and FVTPL.

Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the business model and results
of SPPItest. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessmentincludes judgement reflecting al! relevant evidence including:

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based onthe fairvalue of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

- The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessment.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

iii) Initial recognition

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual
terms and the business model for managing the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are direcily attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.

)
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Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and
deposits are recognised on the trade date i.e. when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised
when the funds are transferred to the customers account. Trade receivables are measured at
the transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash
flows are classified in this category. Subsequently these are measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method less any impairment losses.

(b) Debt Instruments at FVOCI

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. These instruments largely
comprise long-term investmenis made by the Company.FVOCI debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognised in OCI. Interest income and gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. On derecognition,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or
loss.

(c) Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are equity instruments as defined in IND AS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading and where the Company’s management
has elected to irrevocably designated the same as Equity instruments at FVOCI upon initial
recognition. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
when the right to receive the payment has been established.

(d) Fair value through Profitand loss account:

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fairvalue through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

)
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v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

3.2

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments:

(a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

(b) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of directissue costs.

(c) Other Financial Liabilities:
These are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset thatis
at amortized cost or fair value through OCI. Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as the
difference between their carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Reclassification of Financial assets:

The Company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances when the Company changes its business model for
managing such financial assets. The Company does not re-classify its financial liabilities.

Determination of fair value:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fairvalue of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair
value of the consideration given or received). Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company
determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the
quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using
valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow
method and othervaluation models.

)
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash at banks & on hand term deposits with original
maturity of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow
to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are shown
under other non-financial assets. The cost of properly, plant and equipment not ready for its
intended use at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its
previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and whenincurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in other income expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value method
(WDV) to write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useiul life are accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment, based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an
impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

)
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3.7

i)

i)

if)

3.8

Employee Benefits Expenses

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees
render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences,
which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's contribution is recognized
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Gratuity

Liability with regard to long-term employee benefits is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain / loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of other comprehensive income.

Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
atthe Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of transaction Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
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3.10

3.1

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
onanetbasis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the
same relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity respectively.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare. cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

Earnings per share (EPS)

"Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares."

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

N\

111



88th Annual Report 2022-23

N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.

CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

7

3.12
i)

i)

3.13

Leases

Arrangements where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contractis, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use Asset and
a corresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (‘short-term leases') and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the rent as an operating expense in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The Right-of-use Assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liabilities i.e. present value of future lease payments adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Arrangements where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
perthe terms of the lease.

Use of estimates, judgements and adjustments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.
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iv)

3.14

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in the
paragraphs that follow.

Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of

factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors
(such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any changes
could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment if there
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may
not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors
leading to significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes
in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

Contingencies and Commitments
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and

other claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a
reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in the
notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's
financial position or profitability.

Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes
Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tax
Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised based on an assessment of the

probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits.

Recent Accounting Developments
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,2023 which amends certain
accounting standards. These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the
Company.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 4:- v Asat Asat
31March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash In hand 2.c0 2,01
a) In current accounts 1.04 0.69
b) In deposit accounts with original maturity less than three months - 607.50
3.04 610.20
Asat Asat
Note 5:- Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
31March 2023 31 March 2022
53.77 -
Fixed deposits with banks {with original maturity of more than three months)
Unpald{Unclaimed) Dividend Account 1.62 1.63
55.39 1.63
Note 6: Investments
At fair value
Amortised Through other ]
Investments cost prehensi Through profit Total
income and loss
[{aVeld]]
As at 31 March 2023
i) Mutual funds - - 35.59 35.59
i} Equity instruments-
-Quoted - 238,568.00 - 238,568.00
-Other{unquoted) - 7,077.03 - 7,077.03
iii) Preference shares
-Other{unquoted) - 21.04 - 21.04
Total - 245,666.07 35.59 245,701.66
) At fair value
Investments Amortised Through oth.er Through profit Total
cost comprehensive
. and loss
income
As at 31 March 2022
i) Mutual funds - - 42.54 42.54
i} Equity instruments
-Quoted - 217,926.39 - 217,926.39
-Other(unquoted) - 1,545.19 - 1,545.19
iii) Preference shares
-Other{unquoted) - 19.31 - 19.31
Total - 219,490.89 42.54 219,533.43
.
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The fairvalue of investments in equity shares designated at FVOCI derecognised during the year on
the date of derecognition is ¥ 874.75 lakhs (previous year ¥ 863.68 lakhs).

As at As at

Particul
articulars 31March 2023 31 March 2022

(i) Investment outside India - -
(i) Investment in India 245,701.66 219,533.43
Total 245,701.66 219,533.43

6.1 The marketvalue of investments is equal to the book value.

6.2. The Company has elected an irrevocable option to designate its investments in quoted equity
instruments through FVOCI, as the said investments are not held for trading and company continues
to invest for long term and remain invested in leaders in sectors, which it believes to have potential to
remain accretive over the longterm.

6.3. Of the total dividend recognised during the year from investment in equity share designated at
FVOCI ¥1.33 lakhs (Previous year X 3.65 lakhs) is relating to investment derecognised during the
period and ¥ 1,006.35 lakhs (previous year % 1,072.57 lakhs) pertains to investment held at the end
of reporting period.

6.4. During the year, total loss of ¥ 4.42 lakhs (Previous year gain ¥ 156.80 lakhs) on investment in
equity shares designated at FVOCI have been transferred to retained earnings on derecognition of

related invesiments after adjusting for tax effect thereon .

6.5. The other disclosure regarding fair value and risk arising from financial instruments are
explained in Note No.31 and 32.

6.6 Detalls of Investments are as follows :-

Mutual funds
Particulars Face Value As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
(4] Units Amount Units A

At fair value through profit and loss
Quoted
HDFC Overnight Fund- Direct Plan - Regular Plan Growth 1000

- - 1,356.40 42.54
UTI Money Market Fund-Regular Plan Growth 1000 1,364.59 35.59 - -
Sub Total (A) 35.59 42.54
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Face Value As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars -
) Units Amount Units Amount
At fair value through other pret ive i
Quoted
1. A biles and auto p
Bosch Limited 10 9,599 1,859.32 9,599 1,385.95
1,859.32 1,385.95
2. Banks
AXIS Bank Ltd 2 83,600 717.71 - -
ICICI Bank Limited 2 110,500 969.36 110,500 806.98
1,687.07 806.98
3. Cement
Orient Cement Limited 1 260,000 285.87 260,000 369.98
Shree Cement Limited 10 849,450 222,445.05 849,450 204,144.92
222,730.92 204,514.90
4.Diversified
3M India Limited 10 1,094 251.22 1,094 215.48
251.22 215.49
JFil services and i
REC Limited 10 204,000 235.52 - -
235.52 -
6. Fast Moving Consumer Goods And Consumer Durables
Gillette India Limited 10 38,350 1,655.22 38,350 1,859.84
Hindustan Unilever Limited 1 115,461 2,956.21 115,461 2,365.39
ITC Limited 1 465,000 1,783.27 465,000 1,165.52
Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 1 9,700 37.52 8,700 45.37
Nestle India Limited 10 2,030 400.00 2,030 352.83
Procter & Gamble Hygiene & Health Care Ltd. 10 19,970 2,663.93 19,970 2,878.80
United Spirits Limited 2 45,500 344,12 45,500 404.20
Whirlpool of India Limited 10 30,000 394.52 30,000 471.86
10,234.79 9,543.81
7. Heavy Electrical Equipments
GE Power India Limited 10 266,455 264.32 266,455 405.14
Regency Industries Limited 10 - - 1,000 0.01
264.32 405.15
8. Healthcare
Pfizer Limited 10 17,177 595.55 17,477 746.88
J.K. Pharmachem Limited 10 - - 2,500 0.04
595.55 746.92
9. Oil & Natural Resources
Reliance Industries Limited 10 10,000 233.11 - -
233.11 -
10. Packaging
EPL Ltd 2 30,500 49.47 - -
Huhtamaki India Limited 2 122,050 231.28 122,050 184.18
280.75 184.18
11, Speciality Chemicals
Foseco India Limited 10 8,887 195.43 8,887 123.00
195.43 123.00
12. Community, personal & Social Services
Sanathana Dharma Gurugulam Limited 10 - - 1,000 0.01
- 0.01
Sub Total (B} 238,568.00 217,926.39
S
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Face Value As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
%) Units Amount Units Amount
Unquoted -
Alfabuild Home Private Limited 10 9,000 119.25 9,000 106.92
Aqua Infra Projects Limited 10 740,000 563.14 740,000 590.45
Karmayog Properties Private Limited 10 258,000 272.50 258,000 276.87
Ramgopal Holdings Private Limited 10 60,625 21.77 60,625 21.19
Shree Cement Marketing Limited 10 9,000 1.76 9,000 1.74
Shree Cement East Bengal Foundation Limited 10 1,000 0.01 1,000 0.01
Shreecap Holdings Private Limited 10 7,000 0.86 7,000 0.84
Tanushree Logistics Private Limited 10 99,000 209.05 99,000 230.92
Western India Commercial Company Limited** 100 2,105 5,888.69 2,105 316.25
Sub Total (C) 7,077.03 1,545.19
**Listed but not quoted.
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Face Value () Amount Amount
Units (% in lakhs) Units (% in lakhs)
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Unquoted
9% Cem Logistics Private Limited - NCNCRP 50000 25,000 21.04 25,000.00 19.31
Sub Total (D) 21.04 19.31
Total Investments (A+B+C+D) 245,701.66 219,533.43
Asat Asat
Note 7:-Other financial assets
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured
considered good
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.17 2.19
Security deposits 0.31 0.31
Advance to employee 8.00 15.05
8.48 17.55
Note 8:-Current tax assets Asat Asat
* 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance tax-Net of provision of Rs. 445.90 lakhs (previcus year Rs. 245.00 43.39 40.56
lakhs) ) )
43.39 40.59
S
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Note 9: Property, plant and equipment
. Fumiture and Office
Particulars . ! Total
fixtures quip t:
Gross Block
As at 31 March 2021 0.63 1.51 214
Additions - - -
Sale/Deduction - - -
As at 31 March 2022 0.63 1.51 214
Additions - - -
Sale/Deduction - - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.63 1.51 2.14
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2021 0.37 0.85 1.22
For the year 0.06 0.38 0.44
Adjustment - - -
As at 31 March 2022 0.43 1.23 1.66
For the year 0.04 0.13 0.17
Adjustment - - -
As at 31 March 2023 0.48 1.36 1.84
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2023 0.15 0.15 0.30
As at 31 March 2022 0.20 0.28 0.48
As at As at
Note 10:-Other non-financlal assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance against expense 0.54 0.61
Prepaid expenses 0.11 -
Balances/deposits with government authorities 0.08 0.10
Advance depository charges - 0.03
0.73 0.74
Asat Asat
Note 11:-Trade Payables 31March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - 1.04
- 1.04
Note: 11 (a) Ageing schedule for Trade Payables as at 31st March, 2023-due for payment
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - - -
(ii) Others - - - -
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - -
.
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Note: 11 {a) Ageing schedule for Trade Payables as at 31st March, 2022-due for payment

Out ding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Lessthan 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i} MSME - - - R
(i) Others 1.04 - - -
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - -

Note: 11 (b) Disclosure with regard to dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

(i) The Ministry of micro, small and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after
filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises has been made in the financial statements based on the information received and
available with the Company.

(i) Based on the information / documents available with the company, no interest provisions /
payments has to be made by the Company to micro enterprises and small enterprises creditors and
thus, no related disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are made in these accounts.

As at Asat
Note 12:-Other fii ial liabiliti
Note 12:-Other financial liabilities 31March2023 31 March 2022
Unclaimed dividend 1.62 1.63
Capital repayable under capital reduction scheme 1.75 1.75
Employee Benefits Payable 7.32 -
Other expenses payable 1.22 2.32
11.91 5.70
As at Asat
N 13:-Provisi
Note 13:-Provisions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
a) Gratuity 46.14 42.56
b) Leave salary 13.47 10.31
Others
a) Contingent provision against standard assets 0.66 0.66
60.27 53.53

13.1 Movement in provisions:

Provision for leave

Provision for

salary gratuity
As at 01 April 2021 - -
Provision utilised - -
Provision created / (reversed) 10.31 42.56
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10.31 42,56
Provision utilised - -
Provision created / (reversed) 3.16 3.58
Balance as at 31 March 2023 13.47 46.14
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Asat As at
- -
Note 14:-Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (net) 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities
- On fair value gain of investments (through other comprehensive income) 9,991.78 6,334.02
- On Interest on Investment 0.44 -
- On fair value gain of investments (through profit or loss) 0.06 0.42
9,992.28 6,334.44
-Property, plant and equipment 0.26 0.31
-Investments Written Off 0.07 -
- Provision for gratuity 11.61 11.84
- Provision for leave salary 3.39 2.87
- MAT Credit - 21.61
- Unabsorbed capital losses 11.18 10.88
26,51 47.51
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net) 9,965.77 6,286.93
TR As at As at
Note 15:-Other non-financial liabilities 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues 4,73 4.16
4.73 4.16
Asat As at
- Equi .
Note 16: Equity share capital 31March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised:
2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (Previous Year:
2,00,00,000) 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued:
24,59,058 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each { Previous year Rs.5/-
each) 122.95 122.95
Subscribed and Fully Paid:
24,56,806 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up (Previous
year Rs. 5/- each) 122.84 122.84
122.84 122.84
16.1 Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5/- per share (Previous
year Rs.5/- each) . Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any,
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing AGM.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to any of the
remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the no.
of equity shares held by them.
J
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16.2 Reconciliation of the number and amount of equity shares

. Amount
Particulars In Number .
- (X in lakhs)
As at 01 April 2021 2,456,806 122.84
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 2,456,806 122.84
Add: Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,456,806 122.84
16.3 The Company is a non-banking finance company, the objective of the Company is to invest in
long term investments and granting of loans to ensure sustainable growth. The Company’s objective
is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the
regulatory, economic and commercial environment.
16.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the company
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name No. of Shares . No. of Shares .
held % holding held % holding
Shree Capital Services Ltd. 472,000 19.62% 472,000.00 19.21%
Digvijay Finlease Ltd. 471,478 19.80% 471,478.00 19.19%
The Didwana Investment Co. Ltd. 130,788 5.65% 130,788.00 5.32%
Asish Creations Pvt Ltd 124,478 5.33% 124,478.00 5.07%
Shri Prashant Bangur* 208,200 8.47% 208,200.00 8.47%
Newa Investments Pvt Ltd 144,187 5.87% - -
Mannakrishna Investments Pvt Ltd 165,472 7.15% 165,472.00 6.74%
* Beneficial interest in 2,08,000 Equity Shares is held by Shree Venkatesh Ayurvedic Aushdhalaya.
J
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16.5 Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2023 :-
Shareholding at the end of the
Promotername year Shareholding at the end of the year | o cpange during
[As on 31 Mar 2022] [As on 31 Mar 2023] the year
No. of Shares| % of total shares | No. of Shares | % of total shares
Shree Capital Services Ltd 472,000 19.21 482,000.00 19.62 041
Digvijay Finlease Ltd 471,478 19.19 486,478.00 19.80 0.61
Prashant Bangur 208,200 8.47 208,200.00 8.47 0.00
M krishna Investments Pvt Ltd 165,472 | 6.74 175,622.00 7.15 0.41
The Did Investment Company Limited 130,788 5.32 138,838.00 5.65 0.33
Asish Creations Private Limited 124,478 5.07 130,878.00 533 0.26
Newa Investments Pvt Ltd 119,223 4.85 144,187.00 5.87 1.02
Didu Investments Pvt Ltd 17,252 0.70 22,852.00 0.93 0.23
Ragini Finance Limited 1,873 0.08 19,023.00 0.77 0.70
Harimohan Bangur 4 0.00 4.00 0.00 -0.00
Rajkamal Devi Bangur 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -0.00
Rajesh Vanijya P Ltd 2 0.00 8,052.00 0.33 0.33
The Laxmi Salt Co Ltd 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -0.00
The Venktesh Co Ltd 2 0.00 10,152.00 0.41 0.41
Ranu Bangur 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -0.00
Total| 1,710,778 69.63 1,826,292.00 74.34 4.70
16.6 Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2022:-
Shareholdmgyaetatrhe end of the Shareholding at the end of the year
Promoter name As on 31 Mar 2021] [As on 31 Mar 2022] % cht::gyee::nng
No. of Shares| % of total shares | No. of Shares %ot total
shares
Shree Capital Services Ltd 472,000 19.21 472,000.00 19.21 -
Digvijay Finlease Ltd 471,478 19.19 471,478.00 19.19 -
Prashant Bangur 208,200 8.47 208,200.00 8.47 -
Mannakrishna Investments Pvt Ltd 165,472 6.74 165,472.00 6.74 -
The Did Investment Company Limited 130,788 5.32 130,788.00 5.32 -
Asish Creations Private Limited 124,478 5.07 124,478.00 5.07 -
Newa Investments Pvt Ltd 2 0.00 119,223.00 4.85 4.85
Didu Investments Pvt Ltd 2 0.00 17,252.00 0.70 0.70
Ragini Finance Limited 422 0.02 1,873.00 0.08 0.06
Harimohan Bangur 4 0.00 4.00 0.00 -
Rajkamal Devi Bangur 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -
Rajesh Vanijya P Ltd 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -
The Laxmi Salt Co Ltd 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -
The Venktesh Co Ltd 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -
Ranu Bangur 2 0.00 2.00 0.00 -
Western India Commercial Co Ltd 17,250 0.70 - - -0.70
Total| 1,590,106 64.72 1,710,778.00 69.63 491
.
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As at As at

M
. 31 March2023 31 March 2022

Reserves and Surplus

Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.55 0.55

Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 16.51 16.51
Statutory Reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 2,588.16 2,429.26
Add: Transfer from retained earnings 105.46 158.90
Closing balance 2,693.62 2,588.16

General Reserve

Opening balance 4,913.06 4,913.06
Add: Transfer from retained earnings - -
Closing balance 4,913.06 4,913.06

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 6,277.57 5,485.19
Add: Profit for the year 527.31 794.48
Add: Transfer from equity instrument through OCI on realisation (4.42) 156.80
Less: Transfer to statutory reserve (105.46) (158.90)

Fair value gain/(loss) during the Year {net of tax)- Unquoted preference shares

Add:Other comprehensive income for the year 2.12 -
6,697.12 6,277.57
Debt instruments through OCI
Opening balance (6.03) 61.41
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss) during the Year (net of tax) - 14.19
Less:-Reclassification of gain on sale of FVTOCI debt instruments (81.63)
{6.03) {6.03)
Equity instruments through OCI
Opening balance 199,940.59 241,090.56
Add:- Fair value gain/(loss) during the year (net of tax) 21,387.63 (40,993.18)
Add:Transfer to retained earnings on realization 4,42 (156.80)
Closing balance 221,332.64 199,940.59
TOTAL 235,647.47 213,730.41

)
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Capital Reserve

This reserve represent the amount of share forfeited

Securities premium Reserve
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory reserve

Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the
fundfortheyear.

General reserve

General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for
appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to
another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

Retained earnings
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This reserve can be utilized in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Debt instruments through other comprehensive income

This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of debt
instruments measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The amountis
transferred from this reserve to the statement of profit and loss when the debt instrument is
derecognised.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of tax, under an irrevocable option,
net of amount reclassified to retained earnings when such assets are disposed off, if any.

Year ended Year ended

e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

- deposits with banks 0.60 40.78
On financial assets measured at FVOCI
- preference shares 1.74 1.59
2.34 42.37
Year ended Year ended

. 31 March2023 31 March 2022

Dividend income from:

On financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity shares 1,007.68 1,089.73
' 1,007.68 1,089.73

)
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Note 20:- Net gain on fair value change

Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

(i) on Financial Instruments designated at FVTPL

- Mutual funds
(ii) on debt instruments designated at FVTOCI
- Quoted preference shares

Realised
Unrealised

Note 21:- Other income

Liability no longer required written back
Interest on income tax refund

Note 22:- Employee benefits expense

Salaries and allowance

Contribution to Provident Fund and other fund
Staff welfare expenses

Gratuity

Leave salary

Note 23:- Depreciation

On property, plant and equipment

{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4,71 12.39
- 81.63
4.71 94.02
7.02 92.72
(2.31) 1.30
4,71 94.02

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 1.95
0.80 0.17
0.80 2.12

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
135.58 69.09
8.82 5.34
3.33 5.91
6.42 1.06
3.16 1.00
157.31 82.40

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.17 0.44
0.17 0.44

)
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Year ended Year ended
K
Note 24:- Other expenses 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Directors Meeting Fees 3.86 3.63
Listing Fees 3.54 3.42
Filling Fees 5.21 3.69
Printing and stationary 6.09 5.41
Professional and legal charges 32.55 19.35
Rent, rates and taxes 1.32 1.32
Repairs and maintenance - others 1.38 0.46
Auditor's fees and expenses [Refer note-24.1] 1.36 0.88
Advertisement & Subscriptions 131 0.37
Communication Expenses 5.09 4.71
Security transaction tax 2.89 6.76
CSR expenditure [Refer note 38] - -
Investment Written Off 0.29 -
Miscellaneous expenses 5.16 6.59
70.05 56.59
Note 24.1-Payment to auditor
Particulars Year ended Year ended
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
For statutory audit 1.20 0.80
For tax audit 0.10 0.08
For other services 0.06 -
1.36 0.88
Year ended Year ended
K p
Sl U e 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax 202.00 245.00
Income tax relating to earlier years 27.16 20.24
D‘eferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary 3153 20.34
differences
MAT Credit Utlised - 8.75
260.69 294.33
J
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Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Current tax
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary

differences

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 0.72 -
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 3,646.58 (6,004.48)
Financial Instruments measured Through OCI 0.00 (9.36)

3,647.30 (6,004.48)

The major components of income tax expenses and the reconciliation of expenses based on the domestic
effective tax rate of 25.168% and 27.82% for financial year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
respectively and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 788.00 1,088.81
Tax Rate* 25.17% 0.28
Income tax expense calculated at the effective rate 198.32 302.91
Non Deductible Expenses 0.73 1.88
Effect of MAT credit 21.61 (27.30)
Effect of Tax transfer to OCI 9.77 -

Rate Difference 1.65 -

Effect of rounding of Taxes 1.46 3.35
Income Tax relating to earlier years 27.16 20.24
Other adjustments - -6.75
Tax expenses 260.69 294.33

*The company has elected to exercise the option of lower tax rate provided U/s 115BAA of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 Dated September 20,2019

25.1 Tax losses As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unused Tax Losses & unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax
assets has been created

-Business Loss 160.67 171.53

-Unabsorbed depreciation 1.00 1.00
Potential tax benefit@ applicable tax rate

-Business Loss 40.44 47.72

-Unabsorbed depreciation 0.25 0.28

Asst. year 2024-25  Asst. year 2023~
Business losses will lapse between to Asst. year 2030- 24 to Asst. year
31 2029-30

)
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25,2 Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2022:
h
particular As at Statement of com ?:h::rsive Asat
articuars 01 April2021 |  Profit or Loss P 31 March 2022
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
On fair value gain of investment (FVTOCI) 12,347.88 - -6,013.86 6,334.02
Interest on Financial Assets - - - -
On fair value gain of investment (FVTPL) 3,78 (3.36) - 0.42
Deferred tax liabilities 12,351.67 (3.36) -6,013.86 6,334.44
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2022:
Other
Particulars As at Statement of comprehensive Asat
01 April 2021 Profit or Loss P 31 March 2022
Income
Deferred tax assets for taxable temporary differences on:
-Property, plant and equipment 0.31 0.00 - 0.31
- Provision for gratuity 12.56 (0.72) 11.84
- Provision for leave salary 3.36 (0.49) - 2.87
- MAT Credit 30.36 (8.75) - 21.61
- Unabsorbed capital losses 33.37 (22.49) - 10.88
Deferred tax assets 79.96 (32.45) - 47.51
Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) 12,271.71 29,10 {6,013.86) 6,286.93
25.3 Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2023:
Other
Particulars As at Statement of comprehensive Asat
01April2022|  Profit or Loss P 31 March 2023
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
On fair value gain of investment (FVTOCI) 6,334.02 - 3,657.77 9,991.78
Interest on Financial Assets - 0.44 - 0.44
On fair value gain of investment (FVTPL) 0.42 (0.37) - 0.06
Deferred tax liabilities 6,334.44 0.07 3,657.77 9,992.28
Movement in deferred tax asset for year ended 31 March 2023:
h
particular As at Statement of com ?:h::rsive Asat
articulars 01April 2022 |  Profit or Loss P 31 March 2023
Income
Deferred tax assets for taxable temporary differences on:
-Property, plant and equipment 0.31 (0.06) - 0.25
-Investments Written Off - 0.07 - 0.07
- Provision for gratuity 11.84 0.49 -0.72 11.61
- Provision for leave salary 2.87 0.52 - 3.39
- MAT Credit 21.61 (21.61) - -
- Unabsorbed capital losses 10.88 (10.88) 11.18 11.18
Deferred tax assets 47.51 (31.46) 10.47 26.51
Net deferred tax liabilities/(assets) 6,286.94 31.53 3,647.30 9,965.77
.
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Note 26-Basic and Diluted eamings per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Net profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss 527.31 794.48

Weighted average number of equity shares used as 2,456,306 2,456,806

denominator for calculating Basic EPS
Total weighted average number of equity shares used

as denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 2,456,806 2,456,806
Basic earnings per share (%) 21.46 32.34
Diluted earnings per share (X) 21.46 32.34
Face value per equity share () 5.00 5.00

Note 27:- Segment reporting
The Company has only one line of business i.e. Non Banking Financial activities. There are no
separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

Note 28:- Employee benefits

a) Defined Contribution plans:
Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as an expense in profit and loss statement for the year are as under:

Particulars Year ended
_31March 2023
Contribution to provident & other funds 8.82
8.82
b) Defined benefit plans:
Contribution to defined benefit plans, recognised as an expense in profit and loss statement for the year are as under:
Particulars Year ended
_31March 2023
Gratuity - Net defined benefit obligation 6.42
6.42

Defined benefit plan

The employee gratuity scheme of the company is unfunded. The present value of obligation is
determined based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method as on 31st March
2023, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The company's
gratuity expense is recognized under the head - "Gratuity" in note 22.

Movement of defined benefit obligation
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit
obligation overthe year are as follows:

)
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Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 42.56
Current service cost 3.39
Interest cost 3.04
Benefits paid -
Actuarial (gain)/loss (2.84)
Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 46.14
Liability recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 46.14
Amount recognised as liability in balance sheet 46.14
Expenses recognised during the year (Under the head “Employee benefits expense” — Refer note no. 22)
" VYearended
Expense recognised in profit and loss statement 31 March 2023
Current service cost 3.39
Past service cost {vested) -
Net interest cost 3.04
Total amount 6.42
" VYearended
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 31 March 2023
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations due to change in financial assumption -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations due to unexpected experience (2.84)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.84)
Net Cost 3.58
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 7.14%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00%
Retirement age 60 years
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rates under
Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate.
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptioniis:
Increase by Decrease by
Sensitivity analysis Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%) 46.07 46.22
Salary growth (-/+ 0.5%) 46.22 46.07
Attrition rate (-/+ 10%) 46.14 46.15
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 46.14 46.14
.
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Maturity profile

Year Year ended
31 March 2023

1 44.38
2 0.02
3 0.02
4 0.02
5 0.02
6to 10 2.14
More than 10 years 139

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.
The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and
terms consistent with the currency in terms of the post employment benefit obligations.

The above information is certified by an actuary. Provision for gratuity in the preceding year was made by
the management on an estimated basis in accordance with the formula prescribed under Payment of
Gratuity Act 1972. The opening liability as determined by the actuary is not at significant variance to that
calculated in the previous year.

Note 29:- R i
1) Particulars of relationship Names of related parties Designation

Ashok Bhandari Chairman,Independent director
Key mangerial personnel Bankat Lal Gaggar Non executive Director

Jagdish Prasad Mundra Non executive Director

Riya Puja Jain Non executive Director

Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya Independent director

Debasish Ray Independent director

Priyanka Mohta Independent director

Sundeep Bhutoria (Appointed w.e.f 21st September,2022) Independent director

Sundrapandiyapuram Pichumani Kumar Manager & CFO

Nisha Laddha (ceased w.e.f 18th June, 2021) Company Secretary

Sudha Jain{ceased w.e.f 31st May,2022) Company Secretary

Ashish Kedia {Appointed w.e.f 01st June,2022) Company Secretary

.
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Il) Disclosures of transactions between the companies and related parties with status of
outstanding closing balances:

Year ended Year ended

Particular 31March 2023 31 March 2022

(1) Particulars of transactions with related parties (Key managerial personnel)

i) Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel*

S. P, Kumar

Short term employee benefits 22.28 19.95
Post-employment benefits 1.36 2.65
Sudha Jain

Short term employee benefits 0.40 0.70
Nisha Laddha

Short term employee benefits - 0.36
Ashish Kedia

Short term employee benefits 14.23 -
Post-employment benefits 1.08 -

i) Advances

Paid 4.50 -
Received back 6.55 1.85

iii) Directors sitting fees

Ashok Bhandari 0.57 0.65
Bankat Lal Gaggar 0.67 0.65
Jagdish Prasad Mundra 0.71 0.65
Riya Puja Jain 0.05 0.05
Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya 0.69 0.77
Debasish Ray 0.67 0.61
Sundeep Bhutoria 0.20 -

Priyanka Mohta 0.30 0.25

B) Outstanding balance at the end of year (Key Managerial Personnel)

Closing balance of advances 3.20 5.25
Maxmium balance of advances during the year 9.75 7.10

* Post employment benefit details doesn’t include Gratuity as the same is not separately disclosed
inactuarial report forthe year (Refer note: 28)
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Note 30: Disclosure of Ratios (All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Ratios Formula Current period Previous period % vari; eason for

Tier | plus

a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio {CRAR) T|_er . ci_ipltal / 101.98% 104.57% -2.48% NA
Risk weighted
assets
Tier | capital /

b) Tier | CRAR Risk weighted 101.98% 104.56% -2.46% NA
assets
Tier || capital /

c) Tier [ CRAR Risk weighted 0.00% 0.01% - NA

assets

Highly liquid assets
/
Net cash outflow
over next 30 days
Ratio is calculated as per formula prescribed by the regulatory authority.

Note 31:-Disclosure on financial instruments

Deployed liquid
485.81% 8652.98% -94.39% [funds in
investments

d) Liquidity coverage ratio

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fairvalues are disclosed in the financial statements.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

{i) Categories of Financial Instruments

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets
a) Measured at amortised cost
i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 3.04 610.20
ii) Other bank balances 5 55.39 1.63
iv) Other financial assets 9 8.48 17.55
Sub-Total 66.91 629.38
b) Measured at fair value through OCI (FVOCI)
i) Investment in quoted equity shares 7 238,568.00 217,926.39
ii) Investment in unquoted equity shares 7 7,077.03 1,545.19
ii) Investment in unquoted preference shares 7 21.04 19.31
Sub-Total 245,666.07 219,490.89
¢) Measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
i) Investment in mutual fund 7 35.59 42.54
Sub-Total 35.59 42,54
Total financial assets 245,768.57 220,162.81
Financial liabilities
a) Measured at amortised cost
i) Trade Payables 11 - 1.04
i) Other financial liabilities 12 11.91 5.70
Total financial liabilities 11.91 6.74
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the
financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at
amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrumentis includedinlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrumentis includedinlevel 3.

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine Fair Value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

» the fairvalue of investment in quoted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or
NAV.

» the fair value of level 2 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market
participants assumptions and other data that are available.

{iv) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair value - recurring Fair Value Measurements

particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Financial assets
Investment in equity instruments 238,568.00 7,077.03 217,926.39 1,545.19
Investment in debt instruments - 21.04 - 19.31
Investment in mutual fund 35.59 - 42.54 -
Total financial assets 238,603.59 7,098.07 217,968.93 1,564.50

(v) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii)
above.

(vi) Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at cost/amortised cost
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are a

reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the
carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would be eventually received or
settled. Management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
Other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts of these
instruments, as discussed below:

)
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N As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars - - . :
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3.04 3.04 610.20 610.20
Other bank balances 55.39 55.39 1.63 1.63
Other financial assets 8.48 8.48 17.55 17.55
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 1.04 1.04
Other financial liabilities 11,91 11,91 5.70 5.70
{vii) Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
Within 12 months After:Z Within 12 months After 12 months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.04 - 610.20 -
Other bank balances 55.39 - 1.63 -
Investments 35.59 245,666.07 42.54 219,490.89
Other financial assets 8.48 - 17.55
Total financial assets 102.50 245,666.07 671.92 219,490.89
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 43.39 - 40.59
Property, plant & equipment - 0.30 - 0.47
Other non-financial assets 0.73 - 0.74 -
Total non financial assets 44.12 0.30 41.34 0.47
Total assets 146.62 245,666.37 713.26 219,491.37
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables - - 1.04 -
Other financial liabilities 11,91 - 5.70 -
Total financial liabilities 1191 - 6.74 -
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 57.85 2.42 53.53 -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.06 9,965.71 0.42 6,286.51
Other non-financial liabilities 4.73 - 4.16 -
Total non financial liabilities 62.64 9,968.13 58.11 6,286.51
Total liabilities 74.55 9,968.13 64.85 6,286.51
Net equity 72.07 235,698.24 648.40 213,204.86
.
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Note 32
Financial risk management

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India. On
account of its business activities it is exposed to various financial risks associated with financials products
such as credit or default risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and inflationary risk. However, the
Company has a robust financial risk management system in place to identify, evaluate, manage and
mitigate various risks associated with its financial products to ensure that desired financial objectives are
met. The Company's senior management is responsible for establishing and monitoring the risk
management framework within its overall risk management objectives and strategies, as approved by the
Board of Director. Such risk management strategies and objectives are established to identify and analyse
potential risks faced by the Company, set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically
review the changes in market conditions and assess risk management performance. Any change in
Company's risk management objectives and policies needs prior approval of it's Board of Directors.

Credit risk

This risk is common to all investors who invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation
where a particular bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate
payment, or both. Similarly, a lender bears the risk that the borrower may default in the payment of
contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both. The entity continuously monitors defaults of
the customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk control.

Market risk:

Market risk is a form of systematic risk associated with the day-to-day fluctuation in the market prices of
shares and securities and such market risk affects all securities and investors in the same manner. These
daily price fluctuations follows its own broad trends and cycles and are more news and transaction driven
rather than fundamentals and many a times, it may affect the returns from an investment. Market risks
majorly comprises of two types - interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowings and investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is a type of systematic risk that particularly affects fixed rate debt instruments like bonds
and debentures. The value of the fixed-rate debt instruments generally decline due to rise in interest rates
and vice versa. The rationale is that a bond is a promise of a future stream of payments; an investor will
offer less for a bond that pays-out at a rate lower than the rates offered in the current market. A rising
interest rate scenario also affects the Company's interest expenditure on borrowed funds.

The Company monitors the interest rate scenarios on a regular basis and accordingly takes investments
decisions as whether to invest in fixed rate debt instruments, shares and securities at a particular point of
time.

Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
traded price. It arises from financial assets such as investments in equity instruments, bonds, mutual funds
etc. The Company is exposed to price risk arising mainly from investments carried at FVOCI which are
valued using quoted prices in active markets. A sensitivity analysis demonstrating the impact of the
change in market prices of these instruments from the prices existing as at the reporting date is given
below:

N\
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Carrying value as at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Particulars

Investments carried at FVOCI valued using quoted prices in

. 238,568.00 217,926.39
active market

Sensitivity analysis on total

Particulars Increase by 10 % | Decrease by 10
%
Impact on total comprehensive income for year ended 31
March 2023 23,856.80 (23,856.80)
Impact on total comprehensive income for year ended 31 21,792.64 (21,792.64)
March 2022

Equity instrument through OCI being a component of other equity would increase/decrease as a result of
gain/loss on equity securities classified as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity refers to the readiness of the Company to sell and realise its financial assets. Liquidity risk is one
of the most critical risk factors for Companies which is into the business of investments in shares and
securities. It is the risk of not being able to realise the true price of a financial asset, or is not being able to
sell the financial asset at all because of non-availability of buyer Unwillingness to lend or restricted lending
by Banks and Financial Institutions may also lead to liquidity concerns for the entities.

The Company maintains a well-diversified portfolio of investments in shares and securities . A dedicated
team of market experts are monitoring the markets on a continuous basis, which advises the management
for timely purchase or sale of securities. The management ensures to manage its cash flows and asset
liability patterns to ensure that the financial obligations are satisfied in timely manner.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts reported are on gross and undiscounted basis.

1
Particulars Less than 1year Between 1o 5 Over Total
years 5years

As at 31 March 2023
Trade Payables - - - -
Other financial liabilities 11.91 - - 11.91

1191 - - 11,91
As at 31 March 2022
Trade Payables 1.04 - - 1.04
Other financial liabilities 5.70 - - 5.70

6.74 - - 6.74
\ J
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. i {All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Inflationary risk:

Inflationary or purchasing power risk refers to the variation in investor returns caused by inflation. It is the
risk that results in increase of the prices of goods and services which results in decrease of purchasing
power of money, and likely negatively impact the value of investments. The two important sources of
inflation are rising costs of production and excess demand for goods and services in relation to their
supply. Inflation and interest rate risks are closely related as interest rates generally go up with inflation.

The Company closely monitors the inflation data and analyses the reasons for wide fluctuations thereof
and its effect on various sectors and businesses. The main objective is to avoid inflationary risk and
accordingly invest in securities and debt instruments that provides higher returns as compared to the
inflation in long-term.

Note 33-Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, other
equity reserves and borrowed capital less cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of capital
management is to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support corporate
expansion strategies and to maximize shareholder's value.

The entity manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the entity may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
entity monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
entity's policy is to keep an optimum gearing ratio. The entity includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company.

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 3.04 610.20
Adjusted net debt {3.04) {610.20)
Total equity (*) 235,770.31 213,853.25
Net debt to equity ratio** - -

(*) Equity includes capital and all reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.
** As negative kept Nil.

Note 34: Contingent habilities

As at As at

Contingent Liabikties 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

(a) Claims against company not acknowledged as debts
i) Income tax matters under dispute with Ld. CIT (A) 30.65 -

ii) Fine imposed by Competent Authority for delayed
compliance of certain requirements against which Company’s
representation is pending 35.93 -

)
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The company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions
wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its financial statements.
The company does not reasonably expect the outcome of theses proceedings to have a material impact on
its financial statements.

Note 35

Particulars required under paragraph 19 of master directions Non-Banking Financial company -
Systemically important non deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in
annexure appended hereto

Note 36

The Company entered into cancellable lease arrangements for certain accommodations. Terms of such
lease include upto three month's notice by either party for cancellation, option for renewal on mutually
agreed terms and there are no restrictions imposed by such lease arrangements. The Company has
applied the ‘short —term lease’ exemptions for these leases. Rental expenses incurred are disclosed in
Note 24 as Rent.

Note 37: Other statutory information:

(i) The company has not advanced or given loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Other than the above disclosures, the remaining other disclosures as prescribed in Amended Division |11 of
Schedule Il read with section 129 of Companies Act 2013 are either NIL or Not Applicable to the company
forthe current period.

Note 38: Disclosure on CSR Expenditure

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the Year - -
Amount of expenditure incurred
Shortfall at the end of the year
Total of the previous year shortfall - -
Reason for shortfall Not Applicable Not Applicable

Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into contractual obligation,
the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately.

)
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 39: Events Occcuring After The Balance Sheet Date

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Dividend proposed for equity share holders X 0.40 per equity share for FY 2022-23 (Previous Year :

Nil)

9.83

Note 40:

Statement of Balance Sheet Disclosures in terms of Master direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

i) Capital

Capital to Risk/Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%)

CRAR-Tier | Capital (%)
CRAR-Tier Il Capital (%)

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II Capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

i) Investments

A. Value of Investments
Gross Value of Investments:
a) In India

b) Outside India

Provisions for Depreciation:
a) In India
b) Outside India

Net Value of Investments
a) In India
b) Outside India

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
101.98% 104.57%
101.98% 104.56%

- 0.00

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

245,701.66 219,533.43
245,701.66 219,533.43

)
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{All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening Balance

Add: Provisions made during the year

Less: Write-off/Write-back of excess provisions during the year

Closing Balance

iii) Derivatives
The Company does not have any derivatives exposure in the current and previous financial year.

iv) Disclosures relating to Securitisation
The Company does not have any securitisation transaction in the curent and previous financial year.

v} Asset Liability Management
Disclosures relating to maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities are given in annexure appended hereto.

vi) Exposures

A) Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category

a) Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgages-

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented.

ii) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises,

multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based limits.

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitized exposures -
a. Residential
b. Commercial Real Estate

b} Indirect Exposure

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

31March 2023 31 March 2022

)
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B) Exposure to Capital Market

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

ii} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares
{including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

iii} advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equlty oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible
bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

v} and dadh to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in antici of raising ;

vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds

i} financing to stockbrokers for margin trading -

x) all exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
{a) Category |
{b) Category Il
{c} Category lll
viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

C) Intra-group exposures

Total amount of intra-group exposures

Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures

Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on
borrowers/customers

31March 2023 31 March 2022

245,645.03 219,471.58

245,645.03 219,471.58

31March2023 31 March 2022

)
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D) Details of financing of parent company products {All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company does not have a parent company and accordingly no disclosures required.

E) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company during the
current and previous year.

F) Unsecured Advances
The Company does not have any unsecured advances for which intangible securities such as charge over
rights, license, authority, etc. has been taken.

vii) Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from otherfinancial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.

B) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
There have been no penalties imposed on the Company by RBI or other financial sector regulators during
the current and previous financial year.

C) Related Party Transactions
Details of all material related party transactions are disclosed in Note 29.

D) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
Not applicable

E) Remuneration of Directors
Details relating to remuneration of directors are disclosed in Note 29. All pecuniary relationship or
transactions of the Non Executive Directors vis a vis have been disclosed in the Annual Report.

F) Management
The management discussion and analysis report for the year ended March 31, 2023 forms part of the
Annual Report.

viii) Additional Disclosures

A) Provisions and Contingencies
"Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of
Profitand Loss"

31March 2023 31 March 2022

Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
Provision towards NPA - -
Provision made towards Income tax (including deferred tax) 260.69 265.24
Other Provision and Contingencies 6.74 (1.80)
Provision for Standard Assets - -
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B) Draw Down from Reserves

There have been no instances of draw down from reserves by the Company during the current and

previous financial year.
C) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
a) Concentration of Advances

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances

b} C ation of Exp
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure

c) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts

d} Sector-wise NPAs

Agriculture & allied activities
MSME

Corporate borrowers
Services

Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans

Other personal loans

e} Movement of NPAs
i} Net NPAs to net advances (%}

i) Movement of NPAs {Gross)
a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

c) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

iii} Movement of net NPAs
a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year
¢} Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

s el

iv} Movement of provisions for NPAs { g provisions on dard assets}
a) Opening balance

b) Provisions made during the year

¢} Write-off/write-back of excess provisions

d) Closing balance

f} Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad}
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current and previous year.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

g} Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored {(which are required to be lidated as per
The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous financial year.

)
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. . Al in ® lakhs, unless otherwi
Disclosure of customer complaints (All amounts in X akhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
b) No. of complaints received during the year - -
¢) No. of complaints disposed during the year - -
-Of which,number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
Note:

Amounts for the current year and comparative years included above are based on the financial statements
prepared underInd AS

Note 40
Disclosures in terms of RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04
November2019 have been given below:

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty on borrowings 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Number of significant counterparties - -
Amount of borrowed funds from significant counterparties - -
Percentage of total deposits NA NA
Percentage of total liabilities - -

Note:

i) A “Significant counterparly” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated
counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI’s, NBFC-Ds total liabilities
and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

ii) Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus
and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in X lakhs and % of total deposits)
The company has not taken any deposits for the FY 22-23

(iii) Top 10 borrowings
The company does not have any borrowing for the FY 22-23

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/ product

As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
Name of the instrument/product f I
fnstru t/produ Amount (**) % of total liabliities Amount (**) % of tota
Habllitles
Debt securities - - - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) - - - -
Trade Payables - - 1.04 0.00%
Other Financial Liablities 1191 0.00% 5.70 0.00%
Note:

(i) A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total
liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

(i) Total liabilities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and
computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.

(**) Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does not includes accrued interest and other
Ind AS adjustments.

)
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{V) Stock ratios in percentage 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

1. Commercial papers as a % of total liabllities - -
2. Commercial papers as a % of total assets - -
3. Commercial papers as a % of public fund - -
4. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities - -
5. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets - -
6. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund - -

9. Other short-term liabilities as a % of public fund - -

7. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 0.05% 0.07%
8. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets B 0.00% 0.00%

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

placed before the RMC and the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/ ratification.

(vii) RBI moratorium & restructuring
No restructuring of loans/ borrowings has been taken place during the current year and previous year.

Note 41

The Scheme is subject to the required statutory and regulatory approvals.

Note 42:

No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20

The Board of Directors of the Company have an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of
all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting its
business. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the
management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the constitution of the Risk Management
Committee (RMC) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various aspects and
types of risks, including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly
interval. Further, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO),
which functions as the strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the Company
from risk-return perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board. The main
objective of ALCO is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset
liability management, market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to
ensure adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in
terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held
once in a Quarterly or more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes of ALCO meetings are

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 21, 2022 has approved the
scheme of amalgamation ("Scheme") of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Appointed Date being April 1, 2022.

The following disclosures is required pursuant to RBI circular dated March 13, 2020 - Circular

Gross canrying | Gross allowances Provision
Asset Classific N in
Asset classification as per RBI Norms as er‘:Ir:D As::’):n amount asper |({provisions) as required ot carrying required as per
P IND AS under IND AS 109 IRACP Norms
Performing assets Stage 1 - - - -
Non-performing assets Stage 3 - - - -

There is no difference between the provisioning requirements as per IND AS 109 and IRACP norms.

)
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Note 43:

Figures for the previous period have been regrouped and reclassified to conform to the classification of

current period wherever necessary
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Firm Registration No. 302137E

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 052122
Place : Kolkata

Date : 24th May 2023

Far arnd on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashok Bhandari
Chairman
DIN - 00012210

Sundrapandiyapuram
Pichumani Kumar
Manager & CFO

Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
Director
DIN-00711665

Ashish Kedia
Company Secretary

)

147



N.B.I. Industrial Finance Co. Ltd.
88th Annual Report 2022-23 CIN : L65923WB1936PLC065596

)

Schedule of non-deposit taking non banking financial company

[as required in terms of para 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically Important Non-
Deposit taking company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank), Directions, 2016, as amended.]

Annexure to Note 35

(All amounts in ® lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

. Amount Amount Amount Amount

Particulars ——— —— . ——
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue
Liabilities side
(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
{a) Deferred credits
{b) Term loans
{c) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(d) Commercial paper
{e) Other loans
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Amount Amount

Assets side: outstanding outstanding

(2) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (3) below]:

Defined benefit plan - -
(b) Unsecured 9.02 15.97

(3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease - -

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire - -
(b) Repossessed assets - -

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than {a) above - -
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[as required in terms of para 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically Important Non-

Deposit taking company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank), Directions, 2016, as amended.]

Annexure to Note 35

(4) Break-up of investments: (net of provision for dimunition)
(as per AS 13)

Current investments:
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
{iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
{v) Others

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others

Long Term investments:
1. *Quoted:

(i) Share: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
{iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others (please specify)

2. *Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
{iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

*considered at original cost

13,589.15

12,455.49

)
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Schedule of non-deposit taking non banking financial company

[as required in terms of para 19 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically Important Non-
Deposit taking company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank), Directions, 2016, as amended.]

Annexure to Note 35

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances
(including other Current Assets):

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Category Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
{(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties - 3.20 - 5.25
2. Other than related parties - 5.82 - 10.72

- 9.02 - 15.97

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Market Value
" Book Value  Market Value /break

/break up/or i Book Value
Category . (Net of up/or fair value or .

fair value or Provisions) NAV (Net of Provisions)

NAV
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties - - - -
2, Other than related parties 245,701.66 14,389.62 219,533.43 13,259.43
Total 245,701.66 14,389.62 219,533.43 13,259.43

(7) Other information 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties - -

Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties - -

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -
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BOOK POST

If undelivered, please return to :

N. B. I. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD.
21, Strand Road
Kolkata - 700 001



